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Financial and Operational Highlights Bfi§EE ¥ EiFE

(Amounts expressed in HK$ million 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

unless specified) Notes
(LB BEETAEN  BRIFAIZEHD) Bt &t
Turnover =20 9,998 9,669 8,299 7,749 7,303
Profit for the year FNUNEIE

attributable to equity B EEM

holders of the Company AN EE A 860 926 625 480 462
Total equity R 4,275 3,916 3,315 2,930 2,731
Total assets BMEE 6,792 6,890 5,842 5,266 4,822
Total liabilities to equity ratio # & EEAREZR L =R 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8
Total interest-bearing LA B fE R B

debts to total equity ratio MR = 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2
Current ratio Bt R 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.5
Trade and bills receivables FEUWBR TR & FE U Z= 4%

to turnover (days) Lk & %% (H) 34 39 48 41 21
Inventory to turnover (days) FELLLEX£%E(H) 60 60 57 61 53
Net assets per share (HK cents) &R EE FEE (B ¥Ml) 322 295 250 221 206
Return on total assets (%) BEEDLORER(%) 12.7 13.4 10.7 9.1 9.6
Return on turnover (%) EEZRE IRE(%) 8.6 9.6 7.5 6.2 6.3
Interest cover (times) FIERELL = (F2) 1 26 29 16 14 54
EBITDA B Bl -HER

85 AT A B 2 1,389 1,578 1,076 826 792
EBITDA on turnover (%) BB mEREHA
FITHLL & % (%) 13.9 16.3 13.0 10.7 10.8




Financial and Operational Highlights Bfi§EE ¥ iEiFE

(Amounts expressed in HK$ million 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
unless specified) Notes
(LB BEETAEN  BRIFAIZEHS) Bt &t
Basic earnings per share ERGRER
(HK cents) (Bl ) 3 64.8 69.8 47.1 36.2 34.8
Dividends per share (HK cents) &R E. (B #4) 40 43 27 22 21
Dividend yield (%) B2 B3R = (%) 4 10.0 7.7 DAl 3.7 3.2
Number of issued shares EBRITROHE
(million) (B&) 1,327 1,327 1,326 1,326 1,326
Number of employees EBEAH
Hong Kong and Macau 5 RORM 704 716 682 1,007 881
Taiwan =] 538 587 640 737 851
Mainland China R B K BE 22,254 23,372 21,300 20,249 19,691
Singapore 37 I3k 197 369 522 464 333
Malaysia BRED 160 185 256 343 61
Total B 23,853 25,229 23,400 22,800 21,817
Notes: MiatE -
i Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest 1. FIBARBE L F 2 5t & 23 B 18 R F.8 5 2 )% Fl E2 F
and tax by the interest expenses. EEBHZHEE-
2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 2. EBITDAB K&t FI 8 ~ BIE - ITER#55E FH 5l
amortisation expenses. FU R o
3] Number of shares was on weighted average basis. 3. BROBERNEFIGEESE o

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by 4.

the closing market price per share as at the respective balance sheet

dates.

5 The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for 5

each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of

the Group as at the respective balance sheet dates.

BRELOHEZ T ERERRBEAR R ERIBEEZ

FHERUTEZLE-

MU ERBTDIEAREBERGEN B FENFEE M
A#FEIELXFEAR B FERERZER -



Chairman’s Statement FEREE

The Group achieved a new high consolidated revenue of HK$9,998
million. However, profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company dropped by 7.1% to HK$860 million. Please refer to the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section in this annual report
for more detailed information regarding the Group’s financial

position and operating results.

The Group experienced an uneasy financial year. The net foreign
exchange gains were much less than the previous year due to
the stronger the U.S. currency. In the second half, the operating
environment was adversely affected by the global financial

tsunami.

The fabric business was quite unstable in the year. The gross
margin decreased in the first half mainly because of the
unexpected upsurge of fuel prices. Then the order flow was
weakened by the global economic crisis in the third quarter. Only
since early 2009, the demand from the U.S. market has been more
stable.

The retail business was also affected by declining consumer
sentiment in the second half. The Group started the discounting
period earlier to control inventories. Gross profit margin thus
decreased. Looking for long term growth, the Group maintained
its expansion momentum in the Mainland China by adding 351

new outlets in the year.

The Group has continued to exercise prudent financial
management to maintain a strong balance sheet. It is also
the Group's consistent policy to return surplus cash to the
shareholders. The Board has recommended a final dividend of
HK22.0 cents per share. Including the interim dividend of the
HK18.0 cents per share, the dividend payout ratio would be 61.7%

for the financial year.

Looking ahead, the Management believes the coming year will
be a year of recovery and will take a more aggressive approach
in business development. The Group will spend about HK$300
million capital expenditure to enlarge productivity and to add new
retail outlets. The management is confident to achieve progressive
results in the coming year. Finally, the Board and | would like
to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support, and our colleagues for their

outstanding performance.

Poon Bun Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 July 2009

FEEREXWARFTSEBEIINBEETT - A
i RNRABEBEAEERGEENNTRIA%EB
WeOH BT HEMAFHRAETERE 2WAR
M —WEREBYBRARREESETEFEZ
HE -

FEERBET AR Z2HMBEE - ARETH
B EARSFRREFRETE RTHEL
ERBETZINEHEW2HEMPE -

HEHEBERFABRAIRBE - EFNEREFER
IMBERCRALAMT SR - REE=FES
TEIEHERFTZEMBE HI-ZFTNF
M XEHSZERTHBRE -

ZEXBRTHETZENEEGLTBMEE -
AEBREBREUERFEKRT  EFNREMT
e HRARERBRED  AEEHMAETEK
PEAEEER - EINHIEE3S1R o

AEBEBEFNBECHBEEBEULRERZE
EEEXR KELCRERROABRIATAREEAZ—
ERX EZSERZREATRESRAEBN20
il o ERE P ER S RBHE1801L  ABBFER
BIREZER61.7% °

REAMR EEEMHERFRELIZ-F A&
ROBAFO2EBARAD - XEBEBEAY
BE=ZRIUBEREERENZEE EEEY
REMBEL 2XBRAGL RE EFER
FAEURESHRRAREBUF 2 FEH XS
HEEEBEMzBERE -

TE



Management’s Discussion and Analysis EEE 2Rl & 247

BUSINESS REVIEW

For this financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Group’s total
revenue increased by 3.4%, to HK$9,998 million (2008: HK$9,669
million). Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Company amounted to HK$860 million (2008: HK$926 million),
a decrease of 7.1% from last year. The Group'’s gross profit margin
decreased very slightly by 0.5% to 33.0% (2008: 33.5%). In the
year, the net foreign exchange gains dropped to HK$1 million
from last year’s HK$200 million due to the stronger U.S. dollar. The
Board has recommended a final dividend of HK22.0 cents (2008:
HK25.0 cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total
dividend per ordinary share would be HK40.0 cents, a decrease of

7.0% from last year’s HK43.0 cents.

Textile business

Sales of the fabric business dropped by 6.1% to HK$5,058 million
(2008: HK$5,386 million). The amount represented 50.6% of the
Group's total turnover. Cotton prices were down by about 10% in
the period due to the unfavourable economic situation. In the first
half, the gross profit margin was unfavourable mainly because of
the unexpected upsurge of fuel costs. Order flow was sluggish in
the third quarter due to the global financial tsunami. Since early
2009, the Group has seen a gradual business recovery. Gross profit
margin was improved in the last quarter of the financial year
mainly due to the decrease of operating costs. Production capacity
grew by about 12% in the year. The performance and the key

financial ratios of this business were as below:

E 3 AE)

BE_ZTNF=ZA=Z+—-ALZABBFE "
REBEMBWA EF34% > EBHII8HE T (=
ZENF  BY¥I66IBETL) c ANRERES
EREAFEEZNABESOEET(ZEEN
FEYREET) REFTHKIN% - AKH
ZERNREYTREOS%E3B0% (TN F
335%) c AFRHNETKEER  EXRRTF
HAEAFEZBE20EBLTHREABB1IEET °
EEEEBRRAYRESLBERBE20ML (=
TTN\F BB - ERFHRE  SEE
BRI B4 EE BB 40010 0 BREF 2B 43.01L
WA 7.0% °

P ES
HBTEREEETR6I%ZEBHES08EET
(ZZF)\F : BH¥538HET) - KBBBAE
B8 52 50.6% ° HIARBIEESE THEL10% -
FTEARKBEBRTEMS - LHEFEFZEILF
BHE TEHARBERRABAMEE - £=
EZSRBWMER  EBTEEBRE -H_-F
TAENR AEERREBZHET - HRE
EHRATR ENEEHEE - FTEMREZ - FR
EREIEMT H12% - WEBCREREEZNHL
ZHRIAT

(in HK$'million) (¥ B & T ) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net sales FHHE 5,058 5,386 4,627 4,258 4,109
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 21.2 21.3 19.1 18.0 16.8
Operating profit (note) EERE (FE) 776 910 664 503 426
EBITDA B -® -ER

(note) BEER RS (M) 992 1,108 837 665 571
Return on total assets (%) (note) #EE W R(%)(Fiz) 137 14.8 13.7 11.0 10.7
Return on sales (%) (note) SHE W R R (%) (HaE) 15.1 15.4 14.5 12.2 10.5
Return on equity (%) (note) R R (%) (B aF) 18.9 22,5 20.5 18.1 16.8
Capital expenditure EARMRH 104 216 468 148 392

Note: Exclude interest income and rental income.

Kiit . TEEFERARBEEZKA -



Management’s Discussion and Analysis EIEE 2R & 0

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (K EEEE)
Retail and distribution business ZERDHEE

Turnover of the business amounted to HK$4,900 million (2008:
HK$4,239 million), a growth of 15.6%, and accounted for 49.0%
of the Group’s total turnover. Business performance was adversely
affected by global financial crisis in the second half of the financial
year. In view of weakened market conditions, stringent inventory
control was exercised to maintain a healthy balance sheet. In the
year, gross profit margin dropped to 45.3% from last year’s 49.1%.
The Mainland China remained the focus of expansion, with 351
new outlets added in the period. On the other hand, 53 stores

were reduced in other Asian areas. At the year end:

(a) the business performance and the key financial ratios were

MR EEREEBLIVOBEL(ZZEZNE
BHABIEE L) BRI156% MEAEER
BKEA9.0% c RABBRFEZTHEF  2BR
RRZEERMEHMEZE - ETREET A5
EHRTRECEFEEULBERE-EEGEK
Fo FRNEFEHREF249.1% T BREA53% °
BAENABERELN WAL TIBIEHIE -
seoh - EE MM B A T3/ EH o RA
FR:

(@) EBRERIBHHELERBIMT :

as follows:
(in HK$'million) (GE#% B &) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net sales FHE 4,900 4,239 3,625 3,444 3,146
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 453 49.1 47.8 46.5 46.8
Sales growth of comparable AL R E

shops (%) (note 1) R (%) (FaE1) 6.5 21.4 2.9 (7.0) 0.1
Operating profit (note 2) EERE (HE2) 160 242 21 (55) 65
EBITDA B B -HER

(note 2) BHERRE (HF2) 279 364 147 62 151
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRZ = (%) (fzt2) 5.5 2.1 (0.4) (3.6) 1.9
Return on sales (%) (note 2) SHEWEE (%) (Hit2) 13 0.8 (0.4) (2.8) 1.5
Return on equity (%) (note 2) e a5 2R (%) (HfE2) 235 26.2 (9.1) (77.5) 21.8
Capital expenditure BEARMRE 107 76 141 203 233
Notes: Bt -

(1) Comparable shops of a year include shops with full year

operation during the year and the preceding year.

2) Exclude interest income and rental income.

(1) FTHERBERZFREN-—FHELFE
ERIEH ©

@ TEEFBRARHEZHRA -



Management's Discussion and Analysis B [E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

(b)

(c)

the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

O EE#E)
BERSWHES (F)

(b) BEIEmBHEEINAOT :

(in HK$'million) (E¥ & &) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Baleno e 2,311 1,589 1,584 1,596 1,497
S&K S&K 809 826 601 563 586
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 639 528 441 361 302
ebase ebase 383 462 398 399 337
Others Hit 758 834 601 525 424
Total Rl 4,900 4,239 3,625 3,444 3,146
the development in different markets was as follows: (0 BMSERBERAOT !
Mainland China B K BE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) (B¥a=ET) 3,834 3,124 2,431 2,219 1,963
Increase in net sales (%) SHE R 212 0(%) 23 29 10 13 23
Retail floor area CEEEEE

(sq.ft.)** (F5R)* 1,866,008 1,692,967 1,672,807 1,601,473 1,322,547
Number of sales associates** &&S# Qg ** 10,701 10,442 11,089 10,119 10,534
Number of outlets* MmEE* 3,828 3,477 3,347 3,143 2,837
Hong Kong and Macau BEERERM

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) (B¥FET) 402 404 476 496 463
Increase/(decrease) BEFE LM

in net sales (%) CRL2) (%) (1) (15) (4) 7 18
Retail floor area TEZEERE

(S (FHR)* 56,131 63,957 74,907 78,285 81,442
Number of sales associates** EEgH* 398 396 447 624 536
Number of outlets** FAmEE * 65 70 87 94 85




Management’s Discussion and Analysis EIEE 2R & 0

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) IO E)
Retail and distribution business (continued) BERDHEER (&)
() the development in different markets was as follows: (o) ®mERRBERIWOT @ (&)

(continued)

Taiwan o
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net sales HEFHE
(HK$ million) (B EET) 426 397 427 513 557
Increase/(decrease) HEFHE LM
in net sales (%) CRL2) (%) 7 (7) 17) (8) 27
Retail floor area TEZEEE
(sq.ft.)** (FHIR)** 187,230 199,443 202,080 208,925 219,625
Number of sales associates** EEgH* 438 474 528 603 706
Number of outlets*~ FAmE A *2 194 217 259 266 270
Singapore bR
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net sales HEFHE
(HK$ million) (B¥EET) 166 233 221 175 154
Increase/(decrease) BEFHE LM
in net sales (%) CRL2) (%) (29) 5 26 14 32
Retail floor area TEZEEE
(sq.ft.)** (FTR)** 24,877 43,149 61,601 55,781 32,548
Number of sales associates** EE5HE* 157 318 456 408 289
Number of outlets*# FATm 8B ** 23 44 64 56 43
Malaysia BRA R
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net sales HEFHE
(HK$ million) (B¥BEET) 72 81 70 41 9
Increase/(decrease) HEFE LM
in net sales (%) (R 2) (%) (11) 16 71 356 N/ATE A
Retail floor area TEEARE
(sq.ft.)** (FR)* 33,185 44,630 59,170 36,681 17,200
Number of sales associates** £&E#H ** 134 149 243 155 66
Number of outlets*# FAmEE * 16 20 30 20 31
* As at 31 March @ IRN= 5 =3r=5]
# For self-managed stores # HE&E

A Including self-managed and franchise stores A BIEEEERGHFEE
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Garment manufacturing business

Sales of this associate grew 18.2% to HK$1,443 million (2008:
HK$1,221 million). Net profit contributions to the Group amounted
to HK$53 million (2008: HK$62 million), a decrease of 14.5%. In
the fiscal year, 67.7% (2008: 72.8%) of the fabric consumed was
supplied by the Group’s fabric division and sales to our retail
division accounted for 23.6% (2008: 19.7%) of its revenue. Business
performance was generally stable in the period. Gross profit
margin was down to 13.3% from last year’s 14.4% mainly due to a

more competitive business environment.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a healthy financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank debts and the gearing ratio at the
year end were 2.0, HK$906 million and 0.0 (2008: 1.9, HK$1,248
million and 0.1) respectively. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio
of total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash equivalents,
to total shareholders’ equity. The net cash inflow from operating
activities for the year was HK$1,052 million (2008: HK$1,131

million).

The interest cover and the inventory to turnover for the year under
review were 26 times and 60 days (2008: 29 times and 60 days)
respectively. The Group mainly financed its operating activities by
cash inflow from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At
the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents, the equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company and the unutilized
banking facilities were HK$801 million, HK$4,138 million and
HK$3,417 million (2008: HK$818 million, HK$3,819 million and

HK$3,347 million) respectively.

E 3 3C)NE )

BREH

I B TS B BRIL MN182% E B M1 M43 EE T
—EE)N\FB¥121858 %) c HEAKEFR
NERMBEBESEELT(ZZ2NF  B¥62H
Br) HMD145%  c REEBIBFE R » 67.7% (=
ZZNF 1 728%) FEA 25 R B A K B 4 &
PIftRE  MHEEFAEBTEERAGHBAE
236% (ZZBZ)\F : 19.7%) - HAXEBRE XK

2 144% T B E133% ©

B 7 AR R

RBEERFBKER
AEBEBEFRENTBMRR - REAER R
BhE RTEFLERELAEBLEERIFA
20 BHIWEHETLKOON(=ZZZENF : 198
#1,248E B TR0.1) - EXREFELRTIIEMERIR
ERECEEYNLEHMEBEBEARRES 2L
R AFRKEMBNRETNFEABE102E
B (ZZZN\F  B¥1,13188T) °

RAF  FERELERFEEEXEHALES 5
FH26HERE0K (ZBENF | 29fFR60K) o K&
BXrZLUKLMERERARBITERREHE
EEeMER - REER RERBESZEY -
ARARRBMAERERERADARTEEE
DRIRBYESNEE T BHAL1BEBELIREY
BATEBRN(ZZZNGE  BH¥IBEET - B
3819 B TR B¥3347TEET) °
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure of the Group for the year amounted to
HK$216 million (2008: HK$292 million), of which HK$104 million
(2008: HK$216 million) was incurred by the textile business for
the addition of plant and machinery and the enhancement of the
environmental protection facilities. For the retail and distribution
business, the customer spending sentiment was dramatically
affected by the financial tsunami in the second half of the year,
the Group became more cautious in expanding its retail network.
The capital expenditure incurred by this business increased by
HK$31 million to HK$107 million (2008: HK$76 million) compared
with last year mainly for the relentless decoration of shops and the

enhancement of the management information systems.

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2009 and 31

March 2008.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2009 and 31

March 2008 have been set out in note 33.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in
managing its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major
interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HIBOR based
Hong Kong dollar borrowings with maturity due within four years.
The Group will continue to monitor the change in interest rate
and arrange appropriate financial instruments to hedge its interest

risks whenever needed.

During the year, the major asset, liabilities, revenues, expenses
and procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD,
USD, Renminbi, Yen and NTD. The Group had arranged foreign

exchange contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

B # AR (4#)

BEAMEXH

RAFE  AREBEAMIHABHE265E T (=
ZTN\F  BE2NEET)  HHHHMEBNE
AMEZHRABEIMEEL(ZZZNE B
216 B)  TEARENBRERBERREARRK
Rit - AR ZBERDHEKHE  HRAET ¥
FHEEHEEREILRERSARE A58
ERREZENUHRONBREENKR - LEBEL
MEXHBEFEMEBRINEETEEBBI07EE
T(ZEZ)N\F  BEIcAER) TEARTE
EHERRRAENEERS

BEER
REBBAF=ZA=+-BHR=BBNAF=A=
T—H G WEBEREECHFEN -

RERE
R-BEAF=A=+-BHR=FFNF=A=
T-ANIEEERAS WM E33 -

BE 5 % F = @ B
FEERESBRBRRBERREEN REAERR
Mo AEBIEMSRITERBEL  MERUF

BRITEXFEAFTEER  YREOFREH -
FEBREERITIZNREE  IRNFERKR
HEESRMT AU NERRERE -

REFER  AEBITEEE BB WA - XH
REBEAELT ZEn AR¥ - HRIRHE
¥ AEBECZHERNMESHUREE R -
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had about 23,900 (2008: 25,200)
employees in the Greater China, Singapore and Malaysia. The
remuneration of the employees was largely based on industry

practice and the performance of individual employee.

OUTLOOK

The global economy has shown signs of recovery. Looking into
2010, the Management anticipates a more favourable business
environment and will adopt a more aggressive approach in
business development. Total capital expenditure is budgeted at

about HK$300 million for the new financial year.

The knitted fabric industry has continued its fast consolidation.
The Group will further increase its capacity to pick up market share
from weaker competitors. For the retail business, the Group will
continue to focus its development in the Mainland China. About

150 net new outlets will be established there in the new year.

The Group is in solid financial position for continuous business
growth. It will dedicate its effort to improve its competitiveness
and profitability. The Management is optimistic towards future

business outlook and expects improved results in the coming year.

ABEIR

REZBBAF=ZA=Z+—H XEBRKHE.
FNERERAZIAEEEN23900(=FZN
F:25200) N - ETHMBEETEERNTHEZ
BRREIBEAZRE -

B2
PREAEARIR - BB 25 TEE
EREEAREEERE  KROBRAT L
EBBREE - EHVBEE  ERBEHIL
BEE= T -

SHAMTEBEBEIERER - AEEAEMER
DRBBeRFEFNTEEEE - ERTEE
¥ AEEKEESETETEAERR - £ —
F o MK 150 FE ©

FEEBEREZHMBERATEHEXBER - A%
BREIHNREAFZFOARFBRER - EEE
HARMEBAFERE - WHSREINGED 2%

=
& o



Report of the Directors EE =&

The board of directors (the “Board”) have pleasure in presenting
their report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively

referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of
the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn, the
retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory, the
provision of franchise services and the provision of repair and
maintenance services for motors and generators. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities

during the year.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 48 to 160.

An interim dividend of HK18.0 cents per ordinary share was paid
on 20 January 2009. The directors recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK22.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
year, to shareholders on the Register of Members on 20 August
2009. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity

section of the balance sheet.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.

the Directors EEE€H{ &

MBEERBME
TRAFEERBELANBRFEEZXERE
B AERJBRIESCHE DHACAM
REBUHBREARRBEENET S8 It
BELTBREERSBHEZHS -

RESULTS £
Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1t—HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B FT BT BT T BT T BT
REVENUE /PN 9,997,737 9,669,206 8,298,552 7,749,112 7,302,697
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B i A1 5 1,012,572 1,213,975 732,868 505,690 544,798
Tax g (121,448) (254,843) (107,047) (70,473) (61,113)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEZR 891,124 959,132 625,821 435,217 483,685
Attributable to: =SB
Equity holders RNRDEER
of the Company FRE#E 860,357 926,351 625,148 480,253 461,799
Minority interests LERRER 30,767 32,781 673 (45,036) 21,886
891,124 959,132 625,821 435,217 483,685




Report of the Directors EE =&

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

EE AERIERRES

As at 31 March

N=H=F—H

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

BT BT BT T BT T BT

TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 6,791,954 6,890,097 5,842,399 5,265,840 4,822,286
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEHAE (2,517,166) (2,973,812) (2,527,376) (2,335,891) (2,090,945)
MINORITY INTERESTS DR RER (136,825) (96,933) (66,943) (58,148) (103,498)
4,137,963 3,819,352 3,248,080 2,871,801 2,627,843

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and

investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in

notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set

out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

MK BERKERREWE

FEERKNFEZYE BMERREERENE
ZEEBFED B EHRN B RERME 1314

B 7R I B B
ARRARFARARBREZD 2 FBEREHE
BB 5 BI 5 B Bt 35 4R R P £ 29 30 -

BARREE
AATZEHMUREFEZAOMEELRE
RGEIBERAD AR PIERERERTHR -
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its own

shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) and the purchased shares were subsequently cancelled

by the Company. The details of the purchases were as follows:

BA BORHEXAQAFT LTRSS

RER AQXFAERBEBBESRZMAERL A
(TEERpr ) B BB ER ) H AR 12 » © = 88 IR 42 4 BB B

FitH - BEAAAMT

Price per share

Number of SRER Aggregate

Date shares repurchased Highest Lowest Consideration

=R = i B 4 B B B & RELHE

HKS HK$ HKS$

BT BHT BT

1 April 2008 166,000 5.49 5.43 908,000
—ZEENFHA—H

9 April 2008 288,000 5.48 5.42 1,572,000
—ZENFHANA

10 April 2008 250,000 5.38 5.32 1,338,000
—ZENFHATH

29 October 2008 50,000 3.13 3.13 157,000

—EENF+BE=1+NA
754,000 3,975,000*

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value
thereof. During the year, the premium paid on the purchase of the
shares of HK$3,951,000 has been debited to the share premium
account of the Company. An amount equivalent to the par value of
the shares cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits

of the Company to the capital redemption reserve.

* The balance net off repurchase expenses of HK$14,000

EEzZRONRFAREZHEREAERAEZAATE
BITRATEHR - RFEA - ENZEBRMDE
fB78%3,951,0007T © ERA A B RAEE IRA
B BERTHERDVEEZEE  CHALAW

REBBFEBERAEE A o

*  UAEBRE AR DB & A B ¥ 14,000 T
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The purchases were effected by the directors pursuant to the

general mandate granted with a view to benefit the shareholders

as a whole by enhancing the net assets, and/or earnings per share

of the Company.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed

securities of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
HK$791,050,000, of which HK$291,986,000 has been proposed as
a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account and the capital redemption reserve, in the total
amount of HK$354,100,000, may be distributed in the form of fully

paid bonus shares.

BA BEORHEEXRQT EHES#)

ESDRBCERN -—RREETEE  BWR
DRAARAEETE  RAEBREF  £E
BERRER -

Br B PR BE S0 » AN A B R EAEAME L 8 &
BA HERELOAQXREMLHES -

e
ARARAEERAFE 2 HHEEBHED BT
HRB BRI ENORGEREZDE -

CIRE3 =R ]

REZZBEAF=ZAZ+—HB XAFAHRER
ERHEY DK E B ¥ 791,050,000 7T
H A8 45 K 3% AN 5F R B R B 5% 78 185 291,986,000
T o BEAh - AND B R A B Bk KR IR AN B 1% 45
& 78 15354,100,000 T 75 7 LA R AL AR 75 R F BA

2R °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 31.4% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from

the largest supplier included therein amounted to 12.8%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Kai Chak

Poon Kei Chak

Poon Kwan Chak

Ting Kit Chung

Independent non-executive directors (“INED"):
Au Son Yiu
Cheng Shu Wing

Wong Tze Kin, David

FEEFRMER

RAFE  EFAKEHZAAEEFZE8EEE
FREEDLN30%  c AEBERZAAEMRERZ
RBE2ECBREN4%  HPaRAHERS
RBAMGE2EERE128% -

YEEMADNBDESREBEA T HEFARR (&
ESHBEARACTHITRAS%U L) HAEH
BRAOEHEBEEMNERTE -

B=
AERFATESMT

BITES:
BWER(TERESHEE)
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DIRECTORS (continued)
In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing
directors will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Messrs. Au Son Yiu, Cheng Shu Wing and Wong Tze Kin,
David, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or

compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company

or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 61, is the chairman and chief executive

officer overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He

founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 34 years’ experience

in the textile field.

Mr. Poon Kai Chak, aged 59, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group in 1980 and has more than 29 years’
experience in the Industry. He is responsible for the management

of the manufacturing operations of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 57, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group on its establishment in 1975 and has
more than 34 years’ experience in the field. He is responsible for

the purchases, sales and the overall management of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kwan Chak, aged 63, is the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Bun Chak. He joined the Group in 1976 and has more than
33 years' related experience. He is responsible for the Group’s

merchandising and sales management.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 53, is responsible for the general
administration and financial management of the Group. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has more than 10 years’ banking
experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University

of Hong Kong.

EZSREAREBAEREE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 64, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of the Stock Exchange and the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited and
a member of the Election Committee for the financial services
subsector election for the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an
independent non-executive director for several public companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is the ex-deputy
chairman of The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
(1992-1994) and ex-council member of the Stock Exchange
(1988-1994). He was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of the Company in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 59, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30
years' experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong
Kong. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director

of the Company in July 1992.

Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, aged 46, is a director of CFL Anchor
Limited. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of California at Berkeley. He is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 25 years’ experience in accounting,
corporate finance, stockbroking and fund management. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the

Company in March 2004.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 54, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. He holds a Master’s degree in business administration
from the Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is a member of the British Computer
Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Chan had over 15

years' experience in retail operations and MIS management.

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 47, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group's financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan
holds a Master’s degree in commerce from The University of New
South Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a certified
practising accountant of the CPA Australia. He has more than 22

years' experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 52, is a director of the Group’s
retail operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had

more than 20 years’ experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 54, is the director and general manager
of Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged
in the sale of finished knitted fabric. He joined the Group in 1994

and has more than 35 years’ experience in the textile industry.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

RERKRWT :

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),

were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

RAEQBEBRDZHR :

EERROKEBERO 2ESZRKR

RZZEZANF=ZA=+—-H RE(EFRHE
RBI) SE32k M7 V=2 RRBCED D
AESETEZRZNBRESR(HEFR D)
BARANBRBZIN  SESEARAREKE
EE (E&ER(RFRPEMRA) EXVER) B RA

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRHEE SORERNME

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Through Company’s

beneficially minor controlled issued share

Name of director ESpE owned children  corporation Total capital
HA D

HER HERAR EBRITRAE

BEREE AEFFL EZEHAF &st BH =

Poon Bun Chak EWE 31,888,000 168,800,104 456,450,000? 657,138,104 49.5
Poon Kai Chak BEE 7,202,800 — — 7,202,800 0.5
Poon Kei Chak EEOE 21,477,200 — 41,922,000 63,399,200 4.8
Poon Kwan Chak VD=2 13,270,800 — — 13,270,800 1.0
Ting Kit Chung THEE 1,600,000 — — 1,600,000 0.1
75,438,800 168,800,104 498,372,000 742,610,904 55.9
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 168,800,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc. as a trustee for The Evergreen
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include the
family members of Mr. Poon Bun Chak. These shares are held through

his spouses or minor children in accordance with the SFO.

2) The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in
which Farrow Star Limited has an 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85%

interest in Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

(3) The 41,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International
Holdings Limited (“Treasure Link”), in which Mr. Poon Kei Chak and

his spouse each owned 50% equity interests.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

EERROREBERO 2EZRKR

(1)

@

3)

(%)
M

168,800,104 /% I 13 Hi Farrow Star Limited#5 7% + i
#Z 2 & Al A Perfection (PTC) Inc. X The Evergreen
TrustZ it A B2 EHR  ZE2BEIZZm
ANBIEEWELLEZRERKE - RIE(EFRE
EF%A)  ZERGBRUBER KK FFLIF
Ao

456,450,000 A% KX 13 HiFarrow Star Limited# &
97.15% f¢ X #& # =2 Giant Wizard Corporation #
& ° Giant Wizard Corporation 2 2.85% 1% # B &
WELEHRER °

i%41,922,000 % R 17 1 B #IE L L R A3 5 #
5 50% & 7= Z Treasure Link International Holdings
Limited ([ Treasure Link |) #%& °

RADBBREZHER :

Number of share options directly

beneficially owned

EEBESERBEETERERE
Executive directors: HITESE:
Poon Bun Chak BEWIE 1,000,000
Poon Kai Chak BEE 10,500,000
Poon Kei Chak BHOE 10,500,000
Poon Kwan Chak BEE 10,000,000
Ting Kit Chung THAR 10,000,000
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFEHITES :
Au Son Yiu ELRE 400,000
Cheng Shu Wing R 55 400,000
Wong Tse Kin, David =HE 200,000

43,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the

directors had registered an interest or short position in the

shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short
position in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 30

to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRAESTE (@)

TREBRENAATRTEZBREN S :

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share

options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2008 year 2009 share options
BRE R-TINF R=Z2NE
SEELABAERN BREERADH TREE R ME—B EREHTHE =ZA=+—-0 BRETEHR
HKS$ per share
ZREH T
Executive directors
HITES
Poon Bun Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
EWE —EECF ZET-FENA+-HE
IR ZZE--—FhA+H
Poon Kai Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 7,500,000 — 7,500,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
BEE ST B ZET-FENAT-HE
AA+—R ZZ--—FnA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000 — 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EEME —EEME=ZA-+RHZE
SH=TE —E-NE=A=t+HH
10,500,000 — 10,500,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BREE (#)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2008 year 2009 share options
BhRE R-TTNE R-ZBZ2RF
SHEELWAEN BREEZBEH~ TR MA—B ERETHE =ZA=1+-0 BRETEHR
HK$ per share
SIRBET
Executive directors (continued)
BTEE (#)
Poon Kei Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 7,500,000 — 7,500,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
BHE —EEC-E “ZEE-_FhAt+-HE
nAt+—H —E--f£hATH
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000 — 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZENF ZZEEMFE=A=+AEE
=ZH=+xH —EZ-MFE=A=+4AA
10,500,000 = 10,500,000
Poon Kwan Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 4,000,000 — 4,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
EiE —ZECF ZZEZ-FNAT-HE
NA+—H “2--¥hAtH
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENF “ETMNFE=ZA=tXRHE
=ZA=tRH —2-ME=A=tEA
10,000,000 = 10,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRI AESTEl ()
Number of share options
BREHEA
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2008 year 2009 share options
BRE R=-TBNF R=Z2NE
SHEELABAERN BREERADH TREERE* ME—B EREBTHE =ZA=+—-10 BRETEHR
HKS$ per share
ZREH T
Executive directors (continued)
BTEE (#)
Ting Kit Chung 11 September 2002 497 4,000,000 — 4,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
THE —EBEC-F ZEBE-FENA+-HE
nAt-A —2-=FhA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZEEME “ETNFE=ZA=tARHE
= H=ilm~H —E-NE=ZRA=+HH
10,000,000 — 10,000,000
42,000,000 — 42,000,000
Independent non-executive directors
BYFHTES
Au Son Yiu 11 September 2002 4.97 200,000 — 200,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
[=pedid —EECF ZZE-HENA+-HE
AAT-A —E-=FAATH
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENE “EEME=ZA=F+RHE
=A=+7<AH —E-ME=F=+AH
400,000 — 400,000
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SHARE OPTION

SCHEME (continued)

BREE (#)

Number of share options

BREHA
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2008 year 2009 share options
BRE R-TBNF R=Z2NE
SEELAWAERN BREERADH TREE R MA—B ERETHE =ZA=1+-0 BRETEHR
HK$ per share
ZREH T
Independent non-executive directors (continued)
BYFHTES (#)
Cheng Shu Wing 11 September 2002 4.97 200,000 — 200,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
SRS —EECF ZBE-FNA+-HBE
fAA+—8 “ZE--FhA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENF “EENE=AZFRAE
=A=+xH —E-NF=A=t+HA
400,000 = 400,000
Wong Tze Kin, 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
David 25 March 2014
BEHE —EENF “EEMNFE=A=tXRHE
= BI=~H —E-ME=ZA=t+AHA
1,000,000 — 1,000,000
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RS ()

Number of share options

BREHEA
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during the At 31 March Exercise period of
of participant share options* options** 2008 year 2009 share options
BRE R=-TBNF R=Z2NE
SHEELABAERN BREERADH TREERE* MA—B ERETHE =ZA=1+-0 BRETESHR
HKS$ per share
ZREH T
Other employees
HitE &
In aggregate 11 September 2002 4.97 600,000 (50,000) 550,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
ot —EE—F “EE_FENAT-HZE
hAA+—R ZE--FhA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 5,170,000 (783,000) 4,387,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
—ZENF “EERFWA-RE
ZA=+A~ —E-NE=HF=1+HH
5,770,000 (833,000) 4,937,000
48,770,000 (833,000) 47,937,000
Notes: MtaE
* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant  * FEREBBERHAREREALE TR
until the commencement of the exercise period. 1A 1E ©

3 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company’s share capital.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares

immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was

HK$6.61.

o BRENTREERA D AR R %K EALR % E
HRANEHMB N EEIFI T2 -

REEBRETEEHANADQR NEFGES
ERBB661T -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2009, the following interests of 5% or more of the

issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register

of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FERRRAEMATRRO REBRRS
i

R-BBEAEZAZ+-R0 UATHEALAC

BTRAS%HL L2l CRE(ESRBE

6 51) 58 336150 T2 SR MR R R B R AR A -

RAEQBEBRD ZHR :

Name

=%

Capacity and nature of interest

SORESZME

Percentage of the

Number of ordinary Company'’s issued
shares held share capital
LR N

BHEZBEREE ERITREBSR

Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings)
Company Limited

EEEX(EE)BERLQF

Heung Mi Kuen Miraner

EXBE

Through controlled corporation

ESESAR

Through spouse
FERE

Through controlled corporation

EZEFI QA

132,880,000 10.0
21,477,200 11&
41,922,000 3.2
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

FTERRREMATRAROG REBRS
S (m

RAEDNBBREZHR :

Percentage of the

Number of share Company'’s issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest options held share capital

HA D
=x BORESNMEE BEEBERHE ERTREAFI=
Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 10,500,000 0.8

BER YT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out in note
36(a)(iii) to the financial statements, disclosed in compliance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
and have confirmed that these continuing transactions were

entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable

to the Group than terms available to or from independent

third parties; and

BREMIEEN RZZBAF=ZA=+—H &
FAAL BRAQARESERSFLARIESH
ROREERGZERRKRE | REBE(ESRED
B 1R 51) 58336 1% 2 B i H A A D 7 IR 13 2 46 BE AR
BZEBERRE °

BYFHTESER(EBBERZMARDA
FEzEMBRR) (T EWRA D B UATKEERE
B B A T ot T B 75 R 3 A 5 36(a) (i) Y 5 AR BR A KX
5 WHERZERZRUTET !

() BEREEHNBBES

(i) REB-REBEGIEST JELAEEMS
ZEZXZHHERTERGTIANEEBEY
BZENHRR K
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions
In accordance with Rule 14A.35 and 14A.45 of the Listing Rule,
the Group is required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt

continuing connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.45.

(1) Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a

connected person

On 30 April 2007, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu,
Bin Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail
outlet for the retail division of the Group for a term of a two
years commencing from 1 April 2007 at the monthly rent of
RMB620,000 per month for the first year and RMB574,000

per month for the second year.

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a

connected person

On 28 March 2006, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Unit E,
12/F., Tower 2, Fairview Garden, Beijing, China from Mr. Poon
Bun Chak as a director’s quarter of the Group for a term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2006 at the monthly

rent of HK$10,000 per month.

BERERS (#)
(i) ZEXZEBBEEEXSNHBEIES

XERBATEE LHRAAATRR
BB BB 3 o

TEHAZNFEREIZHE
BRETRAFMABRMALSLKRE  AEEA
BEBEVALKEETERANBEERERSN
e o

(1) BE—BEEALEBE-YREESZTELH

R-ZEZELFMNA=+H AKEHELE
ERAD(TUEN(AATINUTESER
EEBRREWEELEZERR) BTN
mUEABNCRPEREDNFEEILE
28235286 M RIRB L IREEE » 1FR A
EETERDHEBNTEERH A=F
ZLENA-HERAEWE SRAHEEE
—FRARMB620000TRE-FHARY

574,0007T °

2 FBE—BHEALRE-YRESEZEES

REZZEZBREZAZ+NB AEEEX
DNEANATESRIZERFBWNE L EK
AFELtERER-E+ —BEEFREAE
ETERDHEBEEEE 2R -H=F
ZERFONAR-—BREAB=F B8FHELAH
78 10,000 7T °



Report of the Directors EEEHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions

(continued)

(3)

Lease of a property as a training center from a

connected person

On 15 January 2007, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"),
a company controlled and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak,
an executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza,
Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong from WLEL as a training center of the Group for
a term of two years and four months commencing from 1

December 2006 at the monthly rent of HK$33,000 per month.

The Company has also received a letter from the auditors in

respect of the continuing connected transaction mentioned above

stating that:

(1

(2)

(3)

the transactions have received the approval of the board of

directors of respective subsidiaries of the Group;

the transactions for leasing of the retail outlet, the training
center and the director’s quarter for the year ended 31
March 2009 agree with the terms of respective signed

agreements; and

the annual amounts of the transactions have not exceeded
the cap disclosed in the announcements of continuing

connected transactions.

BERERS (#)
FTEREWRRBERS 1S (4F)

3)

(1

@

@)

18] — BB A £ & — W E AR5

REZBZELHF-—A+HH AEEEKE
BAXEERAR (AXRQARHMITEERIZERE
RREWELEEZERER) BT K - AH
BRI R RE K23 HEESE
BN+ —4#24207BE - (EBHAREB M F
e HZEBRET=-A—BiE AHW
FMEAR - S AHEESRHBUE33,0007T °

ARBRTRELBEO —FRF LASHAEERS

ZEXZEESASEABNBELAANE
BEHE

BE-_ZEZAF=A=+—-HLEFEERE
BAETEERHE  BIPLREEEEWN
X5 BEHEBRITSNGRI—F &

ZEXSNEETHIABBEERER
SRERENRKRE -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

POON BUN CHAK

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 July 2009

RAZABERE
BENABEZAREHNRESTZER  RA
BEH AREREARATIREHERITR
R225% °

73 4]
ZREHABHMEREE  RADTRRDE
SAZRRAFAG T RSEWBZLBE 2 RE

AREEZE®
EE

&8 —Z2AFLAXNE



Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and enhancing corporate value and

accountability.

BOARD STRUCTURE AND BOARD PROCESS
The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board
and the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to

the executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and

business plan;

(2) to monitor the performance of each business segment; and

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the

Group's strategic objectives.

The Board comprises of eight members. The five executive directors
include Messrs. Poon Bun Chak, Poon Kai Chak, Poon Kei Chak,
Poon Kwan Chak and Ting Kit Chung. The three independent non-
executive directors include Messrs. Au Son Yiu, Cheng Shu Wing
and Wong Tze Kin, David. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is the chairman and

chief executive officer (“CEO") of the Company.

DREARE

AEERBERSS
BEMEEE -

SEENDEXEARREALEE

ESgRER
EERESE
BRmERARA

BEEF
BENESR AENTH
S S

ekt

i

3

EZTemEERA

(1) HEEAEEEZ - X0 HIERERE

2 EESEXBIENRE K

B) RAEEXERHUEBEHTEENHEUE
Bk o

ESEEEN\ERE  c AUHNTESEBEEN R

£ EEELE  BEMELSLE  BEHELRER
THEXE -ZUBIFATESCHEELESL
£ MBRCEREBREE - BWELERSE
DNAETFERESHRLE -
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BOARD STRUCTURE AND BOARD PROCESS (continued)

The Company has in place clear Board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and
accompanying Board papers are served to all directors at least
14 days in advance of each Board meeting to facilitate informed
discussion and decision-making. Directors may include any matters
they wish to discuss in the meeting in the agendas. Draft minutes
of the Board and committee meetings are prepared by the
company secretary of the Company. The Board and committee
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed
to seek external professional advice if needed. All directors are
kept informed of the latest update of the Listing Rules and other

applicable regulatory requirements.

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment
so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the
business of the Company and the obligation and responsibility of

being a director.

INDEPENDENCE AND QUALIFICATION OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three INEDs on its Board in compliance with Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of
business and financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Wong Tze
Kin, David, possesses professional accounting qualification in full
compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed

their independence for the year ended 31 March 2009.

ESsRERERER #)
AATBEAEWNESERRETF SEERE
EEETORMK - BEREFANBRETR
% SRESEEAHFORTORAAEESE
KEAEEERREEEN -EETTERNES
EROENEABEENANEE - AATAF
REAEERRFRESEREEENEER
% EEERERENEHENESERESEY
B EESERERAANBREHRERR
B DEEEEREREGHANERLER -
FEES—BEREYRHN L HIRAR A HER
SEBIRR R o

BHERENES CEHEFE-XEZER . BEE
Z-2EMEN - ERORERIGIETNNAE - U
REHARAADEBHRABRERES -—BESH
BfE-

BYFHNTESNBIMRER

AARMEETHRAEN0NENER - HES
ERBE=FEBYFITES MEBIFHTE
EEREREANEERBER - Ah—UB X
FUTEZEBREEBEREXESHERK A%
EHFELTRAUEIIVQHENER - RBE=F
ENF=ZA=+-BLFE FMEBIFHTE
EERETHRAEIBHEIEB L -
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS EETEREESER
Attendance of board and committee meetings during the year: FRZHEEEZEREZEESZENX

BEAWmE

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

FERSHEBTEHRRY
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EEg BEEg ERERE FHESS REZBER
Executive directors BTES
Poon Bun Chak EWIE

(Chairman and CEO) (EEFREFHKIE) 5/5 N/A 7 F N/A T 7E N/A T & A
Poon Kai Chak BEE 5/5 N/ATE M N/A T8 F N/ATIE A
Poon Kei Chak BHE 5/5 N/ATE A N/A T3 F N/A T8 A
Poon Kwan Chak & 5/5 N/ATE M N/A T3 A N/A T8 A
Ting Kit Chung THER 5/5 N/A 73 F 3/3 0/0
Independent non-executive B I FHITES

directors
Au Son Yiu B4R 5/5 5/5 313 0/0
Cheng Shu Wing S ES 5/5 5/5 3/3 0/0
Wong Tze Kin, David =EHE 5/5 5/5 3/3 0/0
BOARD COMMITTEES E=Z8Y

The Board has established several board committees to oversee

certain aspects of the Company’s affairs.

FHEEHE-

ESECRYHEESZE S UEREADAESR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-
executive directors of the Board namely Messrs. Wong Tze Kin,
David, Au Son Yiu and Cheng Shu Wing. The committee is chaired
by Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, a qualified accounting professional.
At the time of establishment, the terms of reference and duties
have been laid down as a guideline for the committee. The
principal duties of the committee include:

(a)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;
(b) monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of the
Group;

(c)

monitoring the performance of Group’s internal audit team;
(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of

the Group.

The committee held five meetings during the year to review the

followings:

(a)

the internal controls and risk management of the Group; and

(b)

the financial reporting process and the financial statements

of the Group.

BREmE
FUERY

EREECERESEN =B IUFHUTES "
DRAERRALE BEREBEERBBELE -
EHRLERZEENER  BAEXSHE
e REME  ZESHEARBZGIXRBEA
BlfEiEE| - ZES X EMEBLRE !

(a) EZEBBIMRMOHT
(b) EERFEREBAIPEZRLS

(0 ERAEERABFSTAZRE

ZERNABLBEONEARSRE FFER
REBIFRN S &

(d)

() ERAKBEIBERS AURHER -

RER ZESBRITHARGBUTRUT ¢

(@ FAEENAREZHERERERE R

(b) FAEEHBEREFRUBRS -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Messrs.
Au Son Yiu, Cheng Shu Wing, Wong Tze Kin, David and Ting Kit
Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.
At the time of establishment, terms of reference and duties have
been laid down as a guideline for the committee. The committee is
responsible for making recommendation on the Company’s policy
and structure for all the remuneration of directors and other
senior management, and reviewing and approving compensations
payable to directors. The remuneration of the directors and
other senior management is determined with reference to the
performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the committee will
ensure that no director or any of his/her associate may be involved
in the determination of his/her own remuneration. During the
year, the committee held three meetings to review and approve
the remuneration adjustment and performance bonus of executive

directors and other senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Messrs.
Cheng Shu Wing, Au Son Yiu, Wong Tze Kin, David and Ting
Kit Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng
Shu Wing. The Nomination Committee is responsible for the
recommendation of candidates with appropriate experience and

qualification to become members of the Board.

YWEES
FHNEESER=UBYFHTESR —UH
TES 2 ABRELEE  BHEEE - EB
BEERTHEAE BRBEERZEENE
B RBMYNKER ZESHEHEINEIRE
EAAEIES - ZESEXTEEEHAVAEER
HitGEEEASNFHEIERREBRMAZR
VERENESNEE RETESRAMSE
EBEAEBNFH ZEE2EZAEBNXRE - F
RNARE  MHEBERRATENED - Lo £E
ETERRABEMNESREBREALZEE
AZESHNEHH RNFEAR ZEESERTER=
R UBERBTESRAMSEASNGHFHBE
RIERBBBATEA -

REEZES
REZESEF=ZUBLFHTESR —UH
TES 2 ABHBEEE  BEREBEE - EB
BEERTHELE -BERLERZEE2E
B -REZESEEREZEABESERREREZ
ATERESEHE -
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules
as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of
the Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, they have all complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting

period covered by the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT
IN THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (THE “CODE")

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with

the code provisions of the Code contained in Appendix 14 of

the Listing Rules throughout the financial year, except for the

following deviations:

(1)  Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and be

subject to re-election.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for specific term, but are subject to retirement
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with Clause 86(1) of the bye-laws of the

Company.

(2) Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and

should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a policy of separating the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Board.
The Board considers the current arrangement can help
maintaining a strong management position and at the same
time improving the communication efficiency. The Board may
consider the separation of the roles of chairman and chief

executive officer upon the then circumstances.

ESETZERRS

AAABRALTRAUZBEFE  ERAQT
ESETARABRFRH 2T - BADAEE
EEoEN  SESYRAFRAL S

BFBEEFRHZHRE -

HeabXERERSTATFRD

BRESNER  FAARARAMBFE-—ENS L
T #52 R B S5+ PU T iz <7 BY - HETT IR STRR SN ¢
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@

TFHAMMGREHRNTESEEZMRETE
5 - RABEREE -

BAl AABMAFATESLIHFERE
EEMAH - MEREQE 2R E86(1) 1%k
RAARZBRRBF KRG FFREAE -

FHA2IGRAEIRERESALEZAE
&R X AREHRE— AEE -

BAl - ARABRAREHEERNESTS 2
FREZALEZ2AG EZERARKE
NZHhARFBENER » LR R
ABBYER -EESSRFERERES
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT
IN THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (THE “CODE") (continued)

(3) Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of

the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the

Company.

The chairman of the Board of the Company has delegated
the duty of attending the annual general meeting to an
executive director of the Company. The chairman considers
the executive director a suitable person for taking up such
duty as the executive director has been serving for similar
duties for many years and he has good understanding of

each business segment of the Group.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, fees paid for audit and non-audit services by the

Company were as follows:

2
I
R
e
m
B
i
E
4
m
4

Bl 1) )

B) FHEI2RAEESSE2EFEAHELALD
AZRRBFERE °

APAREETEEIERHERRBFAEZ
BEEERDA-—HTESHAT  TER
REZITESREZBBESEAR
RESHAEBEEEL O+ DBE - A
BZESCRZFHTRERBENESR -

7% Ll ke
RER  AATXMOBHEKBHRBRES

Services Fee paid/payable
PR 3% Bt ESEH
HK$’000

BT T

Audit services rendered BIRMET RS 2,861
Non-audit services rendered BIREBFFFRS 380
3,241

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements

of the Company. The statement from the external auditors of

the Company about their responsibilities has been set out in the

Independent Auditors’ Report on page 45.

ESERLHMEMBEHRERZER

EZTRERBEARQAPBREK - AD A
HMEEHE M BRI cEEEACHNEWSE
ZEIRHARE -
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REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal control
procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the accuracy
of its accounting records, safeguard the assets of the Company and
ensure the compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. The
Board is responsible for maintaining efficient and effective internal
controls of the Company. During the year, the internal audit team,
which reports directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
internal controls of each major business segment of the Company
and has reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is satisfied with the effective internal controls of the

Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS
To enhance the communications with shareholders and investors,

the Company has adopted the following communication channels:

(1) meeting shareholders in the annual general meetings to
explain the results of the Company and answer the questions

of shareholders;

(2) disseminating corporate information to shareholders

according to the rules and regulations;

(3) meeting fund managers to promote the business of the

Company; and

(4) publishing the background, the latest development and the

results of the Group on the Company’s website.

MR EEIE 2 B
REEZRGNIEADRRA ZAIMEESE
UREADNB ST LHENERY  REAQTDE
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REEMAERERRBAE
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El| ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited set out on pages 48 to 160, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
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Independent Auditors’ Report & % B TR E

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report ¥ & B ETIR &

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central,

Hong Kong

6 July 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 March 2009 & Z_-—ZEZEhNF=HF=+—HIFE

e AER

2009 2008
—ZEThEF —EENF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Kt aE BET T BT T
REVENUE A 5 9,997,737 9,669,206
Cost of sales $H & B A (6,701,346) (6,429,104)
Gross profit ER 3,296,391 3,240,102
Other income and gains HAb g A R W& 5 187,064 136,714
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (1,787,389) (1,652,477)
Administrative expenses THEH (692,059) (521,980)
Other operating expenses, net Hth&EEMH  F5 (4,079) (7,983)
Finance costs M%ER 8 (40,855) (42,884)
Share of profit of an associate, FE(LEEE R RER
net of tax MRELBIFE 53,499 62,483
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R Bt A1 % F 6 1,012,572 1,213,975
Tax HIE 9 (121,448) (254,843)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A EE A 891,124 959,132
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the Company KARERTEE 10 860,357 926,351
Minority interests DERRER 30,767 32,781
891,124 959,132
DIVIDENDS BE
Interim =e)- 13 11 238,940 239,132
Proposed final i R BR 291,986 331,750
530,926 570,882
EARNINGS PER SHARE FEAARETEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY MEEER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE R
COMPANY (HK cents) (GBH#AL) 12
Basic HK 64.8 69.8
Diluted #E%E N/A F3E A 69.4




Consolidated Balance Sheet G868 EBEE

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
HfaE BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMEREKRE 13 2,308,792 2,367,458
Investment properties REMZE 14 120,199 123,208
Prepaid land lease payments FES T EERK 15 24,422 24,810
Construction in progress EEIR 16 119,283 148,701
Trademarks (GRS 17 33,293 33,293
Interest in an associate REE LRz R 18 111,271 104,764
Held-to-maturity investments SEREHNRE 20 70,056 —
Long term rental deposits Riifiexs 93,979 119,358
Total non-current assets BWERBEE 2,881,295 2,921,592
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 21 1,656,095 1,587,075
Trade and bills receivables FEUWERF R B Z i 22 919,511 1,017,885
Prepayments, deposits and other EARE T2k
receivables H 4t & U AR FX 471,346 483,593
Held-to-maturity investments BEEHNERE 20 20,987 —
Derivative financial assets TEemEE 23 41,920 62,335
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 24 800,800 817,617
Total current assets BRBEE 3,910,659 3,968,505
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Due to an associate FEHBE QR 19 11,231 20,141
Trade and bills payables EARERREMNREE 25 958,516 993,861
Other payables and accrued liabilities HMWEMRIRETERE 26 303,073 363,552
Derivative financial liabilities TEERmAE 23 12,188 19,438
Tax payable iR 300,084 312,656
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M SR 1T E R 27 398,930 434,781
Total current liabilities BRBaE 1,984,022 2,144,429



Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=+—H

REEERAGER

2009 2008
—EENE —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt &t BT BT T
Net current assets REEEFE 1,926,637 1,824,076
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBER 4,807,932 4,745,668
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M SERITE R 27 506,914 812,769
Deferred tax I FE A% 18 28 26,230 16,614
Total non-current liabilities HWIERBAEE 533,144 829,383
Net assets FEE 4,274,788 3,916,285
EQUITY E
Equity attributable to equity holders AATEZFTEE
of the Company FE L =
Issued capital ERITRA 29 66,360 66,356
Reserves # & 31(a) 3,779,617 3,421,246
Proposed final dividend BIRARERE 11 291,986 331,750
4,137,963 3,819,352
Minority interests DPERRER 136,825 96,933
Total equity AR 4,274,788 3,916,285
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung E )
Director Director EWE THAR
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 2B £ RE R

Year ended 31 March 2009 #Z —FEZENF=ZH=1+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EENF —EENE
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
HfaE BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFMBRERNE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BB A& Rl 1,012,572 1,213,975
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs Bk E M 8 40,855 42,884
Share of profit of an associate, FEALEE AR A
net of tax PR %R EE (53,499) (62,483)
Interest income FE WA 5] (55,051) (14,957)
Net fair value gains on foreign HNESTEESRIT A
exchange derivative financial ARE
instruments W FERE 5 (42,049) (56,904)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment REWMEDIR
properties (=) B8 14 (2,873) 872
Depreciation e 6 335,878 320,949
Recognition of prepaid land lease FEAT L3
payments HERZER 6 664 651
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEVE  BER
plant and equipment REEE 6 2,600 3,912
Provision for slow-moving inventories REGFERE 6 13,735 11,188
Write-back of impairment of trade FEW R R R FE W R B
and bills receivables B AE R E 6 (1,109) (294)
1,251,723 1,459,793
Increase in inventories FEEM (82,755) (307,923)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables JE UK BR 7R R B W Z= 4B R A 99,483 72,796
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FANFE - TR EMEWR
deposits and other receivables BRFOR A (3 ) 12,247 (79,728)
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due EAEE AT (RD)
to an associate 20 (8,910) 4,536
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills FEAERARENEZRE
payables CRl4) /& hn (35,345) 22,943
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HfthEMERREERE
accrued liabilities (R4) 18 hn (60,479) 92,317
Cash generated from operations KERMBES 1,175,964 1,264,734
Profits taxes paid 2ENMES (124,404) (133,383)
Net cash inflow from operating activities &E&FBRERAFEE 1,051,560 1,131,351




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 2B £ RE R

Year ended 31 March 2009 &#Z —FEZENF=ZH=+—HILFE

2009 2008
ZEBhF —EENEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
HfaE BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 W F & 55,051 14,957
Proceeds from derivative TEERIE
financial instruments PN 55,214 39,399
Dividends received from an associate EWEE N TRE 48,000 48,000
Purchases of items of property, BEYX KBRER
plant and equipment REEE 13 (163,407) (186,356)
Additions to construction in progress TEEIRZAE 16 (52,722) (105,626)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments B EFZ 2 ENIRE (91,043) —
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEVME BRERRE
property, plant and equipment HE WA 6,403 17,644
Decrease in long term rental deposits REPHESZEESRD 25,379 6,790
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with R &3 A =18 A £ F A
original maturity over three months ZEBMERRD
when acquired (£Zn) 496,086 (496,086)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BRETEHHRLSRA
investing activities Ofi ) F %8 378,961 (661,278)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of new shares BATH IR 29 4,633 11,239
Repurchase of shares LA S 29 (3,989) (6,842)
New interest-bearing bank borrowings M SR ITE R 3,512,560 3,387,461
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EERSRAT
borrowings B (3.854,266) (3,309,544)
Interest paid ENFE (40,855) (42,884)
Dividends paid ENTRE (570,690) (438,045)
Net cash outflow from RMETBESR
financing activities HRE (952,607) (398,615)
NET INCREASE IN ReRASEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 38 hn i EE 477,914 71,458
Cash and cash equivalents at FPZHRERES
beginning of year ZEY 321,531 244,827
Foreign exchange adjustments INERE 1,355 5,246
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELZAZRER
AT END OF YEAR Re%EY 800,800 321,531
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND RERBLZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS BRI
Cash and bank balances B RBITER 24 196,582 228,667
Non-pledged time deposits with original REZB=#AERNEH =
maturity within three months when K 19 E 1
acquired FEEN 24 604,218 92,864
800,800 321,531




Company Balance Sheet AR EEEER

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

2009 2008
—EEBNE —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB ARz &= 32 1,411,287 1,598,978
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments A RIE 148 212
Dividends receivable FE W B B 200,000 335,000
Cash and cash equivalents E4RELSZEY 24 128 63
Total current assets BRBEE 200,276 335,275
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Accrued liabilities EstaE 720 2,304
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt SR 1T E K 27 161,333 56,667
Total current liabilities wRBEE 162,053 58,971
Net current assets REEEFE 38,223 276,304
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABERE 1,449,510 1,875,282
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ESRITER 27 238,000 283,333
Net assets BEE 1,211,510 1,591,949
EQUITY R
Issued capital EBITRA 29 66,360 66,356
Reserves # 1B 31(b) 853,164 1,193,843
Proposed final dividend BIRRERE 11 291,986 331,750
Total equity R 1,211,510 1,591,949
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EE EE
Director Director BEWIE THRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R TRtz

31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=H=1+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business
of Texwinca Holdings Limited is located at 16th Floor,
Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New

Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

o Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn;

o Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory;

J Provision of franchise services; and

o Provision of repair and maintenance services for motors

and generators.

NEEH
BXEEEERATRBRETMR
YZERAF  ARRAZEMPBER
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda - Bk EEBHR D &£
EE XU AR B R EAEIT 22350
HEEBE B+~
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, certain leasehold land and buildings
included in property, plant and equipment, and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2009. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and intercompany balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net

assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.1

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R TRtz

31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=H=1+—H

2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations

and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current

year's financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7  Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their

Interaction

The adoption of the new interpretations and amendments
above has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements and there have been no significant
changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bfi& ¥R 3%E KMzt
31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

23 BEMERERNEBHBERE
ERNEE

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

REBEREATBERREAT IS HEM

B RERBHT REETEEBM RS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements:

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
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HKFRS 2 Amendments  Share-based Payment — Vesting BEMBRELER ERRENZH
Conditions and Cancellations’ E-pLACCHF) — BBIRAR
T
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? ERMBREEN EESOH
355 (F187T)
HKFRS 7 Amendments  Improving Disclosures about BEMBRMELER BENELH
Financial Instruments’ E75 (BRI A) T AZKFE
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’ BEBMBRMELER LEHH

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial
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Statements’ 155 (RIBFT)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs’ HBGEA EE A
SE235% (RRMEFT)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial HBGEL HEREB VB
Statements?® F275 (453 &3
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and EBEH%ER EEEMIAR
Amendments Obligations Arising on ERNHEREE BBELZEF
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

23 BEMERERNEBUBRE
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STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 Amendment  Eligible Hedged Items? EBETHER EEEEITEE?
58395% (EFTA)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Embedded Derivatives? 58 (BB KERE HAAITETLA?
HKAS 39 HHRBEES)
Amendments -REERR
BEEER
58395% (ERTA)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes?* &8 (EBRMKRE FFE# 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued

Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to

a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing

inconsistencies and clarify wording. Except for the

amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for the annual
periods on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009 although there are separate transitional provisions for

each standard.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

°  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

*  Improvements to HKFRSs contain amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS
7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS
20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34,
HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of HKAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in accounting
policies and HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new
or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group'’s results of

operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTTHRENEE

POLICIES
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company'’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the
Group has a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves
of an associate is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. The
Group's interest in an associate is stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate is eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Adjustments are made to bring into line

any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and an
associate represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and

contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against the consolidated
retained profits
Prior to the adoption of HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 “Business Combinations” (“SSAP
30") in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated
against consolidated retained profits in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill
remains eliminated against the consolidated retained profits
and is not recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed
of or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill

relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

(o]

(d)

(e)

()

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Company;

the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or

(d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

24 FESTHROYE (&)

BMEAL
ETHERT EEALTEEAEEREEZ
BEEAL

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

FREALTEERBEB-EHZHHN
ABE: (VEHAER  ZERAE
BREREEARZES  (DERA
EECEREEGUHAEEHRES

FED HGiEBAHBERR
EE I

BEATAR-—EBELT

ERATARERRIEAQARAZEEE
BAE

EBRALTEQBOQEMBALTZR
ERE ;

BFREALRORAAEZEFAL
FrE s EEES B AL EES
FEHHEBEZEIIRNEPTEE
RREEZ =17

H

pi
[

FREALARAEEIBRAEEE
BEATHEMNEEREENZMR L
MZEREBFTE -



Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R TRtz

31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=H=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties and construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised

as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEEHBENVEE @)
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued) ME - BERREETE (F)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write MEZFERENRENNE BERR
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and Bz st A A G HA LA E 4R VA 8 H A A
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful REEEFGREE  REBNmMMAETZ A
life. The estimated useful lives used for this purpose are as EREHNT :
follows:
Leasehold land and 25 years or over the remaining HELHREF BEHRMBTZHEHE
buildings lease terms, whichever is FH REDBREE
shorter
Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining lease terms HEBFEB RSB TZHESFH
Plant and machinery 10-20 years 5B R AR 10204
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years &l HEBER 54
office equipment MAERE
Motor vehicles 5 years AE 54
Yacht 5 years 5 i 56
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment M—IEYE BERIKEZ2BOHEETRE
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item ZAEAER ZEBZRADSMER
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each CHEERIERESIHM  LEBTRH
part is depreciated separately. e o
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method FAEE - AFEAFHNTELSEEIR
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each BELERETRINBEEBE -

balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised ME BERIZFEBEEREERTEHER
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are o EZIER ST SRR R EF &
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on HRUIEBI REERLBIZ2FERIE
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in ABERZAMEHERREEE  AHEE
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between FEREREEEEEE RO =8 -

the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Construction in progress
Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when

completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the

balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement

in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement

in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If the property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and

equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life
of trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective

basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Operating leases ReEHE

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in

property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel
and accessory, cost is determined on a weighted average
basis and includes all costs of purchases and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less further costs expected to be incurred to

completion and disposal or to make the sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is

positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are

taken directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts

with similar maturity profiles.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains an embedded derivative when the Group first
becomes a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host contract
when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only
occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be

required under the contract.

24
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHENBE #)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMERMEE ()

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,

re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through

the amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is computed as the amount
initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initially recognised
amount and the maturity amount. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the investment
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the

amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not

exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are

assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from

the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a

“pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the

income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=HF=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits

and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T Mt sE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to

the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances
and time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash

management.
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=HF=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, and short term highly liquid investments

which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;

from the rendering of services, when the services have

been provided;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

franchise income, on a time proportion basis, over the

franchise periods; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T Mt sE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company

(“market conditions”), if applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end

of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for
any modification, which increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November
2002 that had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those

granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHROYE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet dates and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHROME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in

the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an

investment property and has developed criteria in making

that judgement. Investment property is a property held to

earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,

the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows

largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

s ()
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn

rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is

held for use in the production or supply of goods or services

or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be

sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance

lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If

the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an

investment property only if an insignificant portion is held

for use in the production or supply of goods or services or

for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a

property does not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing
the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could material

affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the
Group determines whether trademarks are impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the trademarks
are related. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of useful lives of trademarks
The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks
were classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives. This conclusion is supported by the fact that the
Group's trademark legal rights are capable of being renewed
indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual
in duration, related to well known and long established
fashion brands, and based on future financial performance
of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash
flows indefinitely. Under HKAS 38, the Group re-evaluates
the useful lives of the trademarks each year to determine
whether events or circumstances continue to support the

view of the indefinite useful lives of the trademarks.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and
location (or subject to different leases or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of
similar properties on less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)

independent valuations.

3.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and

yarn segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and

accessory segment; and

(c) the "others” segment principally comprises the
provision of motor and generator repair and
maintenance services and the provision of franchise

services.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
markets, and assets are attributed to the segments based on

the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third

parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER (#)
(a) Business segments () %¥28E
The following tables present revenue, profit and TRAANEBHZE-_SENF=/A=
certain assets, liabilities and expenditures information +-—BR=BEENE=ZA=+—HIE
for the Group’s business segments for the years ended FEEZEBIBRA  BIRITHE
31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008: E 8ERIEER:
Group £H

Production, dyeing and sale  Retailing and distribution of

of knitted fabric and yarn ~ casual apparel and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HERRRY L EERER ERRHNEERDH Aft H &&
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“ERAE CEENE CRRAE CEENE CREAF CEENE —§8nf  CEINF -ERAE CEENE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT BETT E¥TR BETR B¥TR BETR BETT EEFR BETT BB

Segment revenue: LN

Sales to external EFEEHN

customers ZF 5,058,110 5,385,818 4,900,311 4,239,115 39,316 44273 — — 9,997,737 9,669,206

Intersegment sales PEBZBE - 200 - - 4,744 2,338 (4,744) (2,538) - —

Other revenue Ht A 66,125 77,092 56,439 21,507 9,449 23,158 - - 132,013 121,757

Total &t 5,124,235 5,463,110 4,956,750 4,260,622 53,509 69,769 (4,744) (2,538) 10,129,750 9,790,963
Segment results EES 775,955 910,191 160,057 241,766 9,467 32,683 (602) (5,221) 944,871 1,179,419
Interest income F1=U/ON 55,051 14,957
Finance costs HEER (40,855) (42,884)
Share of profit of EEBELR

an associate, WA BBE

net of tax FE 53,499 62,483
Profit before tax BBaER 1,012,572 1,213,975
Tax HE (121,448) (254,843)

Profit for the year REERA 891,124 959,132
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEEH &)
(a) Business segments (continued) (@) X¥EoE(HE)
Group -
Production, dyeing and sale  Retailing and distribution of
of knitted fabric and yarn  casual apparel and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HEARBY EERER ERRHNSERIH Aft i &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CEEAE CEENE O ZEEAE CEINE ZEEAE ZEENE ZBERAE CEENE CEEAE 0 CEENE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
ERTT BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT V- A BETT
Assets and liabilities: BERERE:
Segment assets FHEE 4,763,420 4,896,238 1,657,452 1,623,903 178,805 184,056 (523,820) (507,814) 6,075,857 6,196,383
Interest in an REEATZ
associate E# 11,2711 104,764
Unallocated assets KABEE 604,826 588,950
Total assets BEE 6,791,954 6,890,097
Segment liabilities PEER 565,173 739,241 1,162,637 1,082,626 73,834 71372 (516,635) (502,247) 1,285,009 1,396,992
Unallocated liabilities *ABREE 1,232,157 1,576,820
Total liabilities agg 2,517,166 2,973,812
Other segment EtAEER:
information:
Depreciation and FER
amortisation B 215,974 197,699 118,847 122,212 1721 1,629 — — 336,542 321,600
Capital expenditure BRMEES 104,362 215,752 107,346 76,180 4421 50 - — 216,129 291,982
Other non-cash EfFRe
expenses T 12,834 11,066 2,214 3,646 178 94 - — 15,226 14,806
Fair value (gain)/loss RENE
on investment ME
properties (ki) /
[ (5,028) - 2,155 872 - - - - (2,8713) 872
(b) Geographical segments (b) H#FHAE
The following table presents revenue and certain TRAAKEEZE-ZEZNF=ZA=
assets and expenditure information for the Group’s +—-—BR=ZEENF=ZA=+—HIE
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March FEZHEIBRARBHEEREE
2009 and 31 March 2008: HEH
Group &5
USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others liminati ¢
%8 hEKE BE BR it B &8
2009 208 2009 2008 2009 208 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 208 2009 2008
ZRRAE CEENF CRRAE CBENF CERRAE CEEN\F CERAE CERENF CERAE CRENE CREAE CERRNE CRRAE CERNE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AT EETr  EEFn BETn BRFn BMTn ERFn BETn ERTn BEFn ERTn BRFn BB EEa
Segment revenue: AERA
Sales to external customers EIEMIRE 3633 390821 3931690 3194360 855595 690,033 590247 564967 98702 1,227,024 = — 9997737 9,669,206
Other segment information: AAEEH:
Segment assets ABEE - — 6634319 61934 - — 3893958 4413964 36962 323159 (A063285) (4046350) 6791954 6,890,097
Capital expenditure ERERX - — 19641 259519 — — 0B 183% 8795 14,107 - — 219 918
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5 WA - Httlr ARz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WA F"AREEEX%E BHIKREER
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns M2 HEREEE  MRERK
and trade discounts; the value of services rendered and WEBEFNESTREEREFBRA -
franchise and royalty income.
An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as WA B AR KBZDHTOT :
follows:
Group
£8
2009 2008
ZEEAF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Revenue: WA
Sale of goods SHEEm 9,906,399 9,604,952
Rendering of services RER® 77,417 49,604
Franchise and royalty income BT REREMNEA 13,921 14,650
9,997,737 9,669,206
Other income and gains: HiW A Rz :
Interest income FE WA 55,051 14,957
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange SNEMESRMTEANREWRS
derivative financial instruments AR 42,049 56,904
Gross rental income on investment REMEHEE
properties UON L 8,944 9,736
Compensation from landlords for EEIRBAL
early termination of leasing B S
agreements BB 12,943 =
Compensation from suppliers for MAREESHER
defective goods B8 10,713 8,254
Fair value gain on investment properties REMEINAENSE 2,873 —
Scrap sales BB E 2,695 5,946
Sundry income HETE UK A 51,796 40,917
187,064 136,714
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6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R FzTHisE

B i A0 ok A
AEEZBRBADEFEN®R (L) :

Group
£8
2009 2008
—EENF —EENE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
HfaE BT T BT T
Cost of inventories sold* EEZEMHR A 6,687,611 6,417,916
Depreciation wE 13 335,878 320,949
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments &1} + #t: i & 5% = #32 15 664 651
Employee benefits expenses, including BEEGANHX  BRES
directors’ remuneration (note 7): e (ffaE7) -
Wages, salaries and other allowances I8 HeRHMER 1,172,645 1,067,574
Retirement benefits schemes B RE R 5t &
contributions N 8,503 8,996
1,181,148 1,076,570
Minimum lease payments under operating K&HET 2t RET
leases in respect of land and buildings BEELER 640,493 700,467
Contingent rents under operating leases RE&HEET2HAEE 357,246 200,422
Minimum lease payments under operating REZHEET 2 RE R KM
leases in respect of plant and machinery BIEHEER 4,248 7,065
Auditors’ remuneration 2 4 kA 2,861 3,121
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BMERRKREBEE
plant and equipment Eia 2,600 3,912
Net foreign exchange gains, excluding ERWEFE TEEIE
net fair value gains on foreign exchange  #T4A &R T AW
derivative financial instruments FE (931) (199,973)
Net rental income on investment properties R &Y% B & W A FEEE (7,947) (9,091)
Provision for slow-moving inventories EEEEHERRTRE
included in cost of sales FERE 13,735 11,188
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment RENELR
properties (h#z) /BB 14 (2,873) 872
Write-back of impairment of trade EWERERREKEE
and bills receivables HERE (1,109) (294)
g Cost of inventories sold includes HK$483,919,000 (2008: # EEZEYRAFEIZEBELILR - I

HK$440,378,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation, minimum
lease payments under operating leases and write back of
provision for slow-moving inventories which are also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of

these types of expenses.

E KLHETZRBHELEARRERF
B E 1513 0] 7 1483,919,000T (= EEN -
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7. EEZEMEeRIANSRSHFMES
PAID EMPLOYEES
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BRETHRBREEBATEE161E AEE
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong EEME2HENT ¢

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
&
2009 2008
—EEAEF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBE¥Fr EBEF T
Fees: we
Executive directors HITES 50 50
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES 810 810
860 860
Other emoluments: Hiai < :
Executive directors: BITEE:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIERESER 36,150 32,408
Performance related bonuses” REBBILA” 57,810 77,204
Retirement benefits schemes RIREFIFE
contributions #E 60 60
94,020 109,672
94,880 110,532
& The executive directors of the Company are entitled to @ AR ITEEZE T EBLEBRET
discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain 5L B BR B 12 0% R 1E 73 B9 18 3% 1 e R A £

percentage of the profit after tax of the Group. TEAL o



Notes to the Financial Statements B &3k &R Mz
31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=HA=+—H
7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7. EEMeRAENESHTFMES (@)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REREZINFBIFHATEEZH
during the year were as follows: £WTF :

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
B F T BT T
Au Son Yiu 2oy 270 270
Cheng Shu Wing B A5 5% 270 270
Wong Tze Kin, David =EHE 270 270
810 810
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER TE(ZSENE . 8)O5

independent non-executive directors during the year NETESIANEMEME o

(2008: Nil).
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7. EE=MEeRENESHEMES (&)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Executive directors b) HTE=S
Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefits
and benefits related schemes Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
5% 2K =5 RKE R
e FREEF HHEa PRI MemE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT BT BETFT BT BEFT

2009 ZEZNF

Executive directors: #{TEE :

Poon Bun Chak BEWE 10 11,556 28,180 12 39,758
Poon Kai Chak BEE 10 5,798 7,515 12 13,335
Poon Kei Chak BHE 10 7,981 7,515 12 15,518
Poon Kwan Chak EBHE 10 5,093 7,515 12 12,630
Ting Kit Chung THS 10 5,722 7,085 12 12,829
50 36,150 57,810 60 94,070

2008 —ETNE

Executive directors:  #{7EE :

Poon Bun Chak Ei g 10 10,015 38,647 12 48,684
Poon Kai Chak EEE 10 5,295 9,682 12 14,999
Poon Kei Chak EHE 10 7,236 9,682 12 16,940
Poon Kwan Chak E9E 10 4,670 9,692 12 14,384
Ting Kit Chung THR 10 5,192 9,501 12 14,715

50 32,408 77,204 60 109,722
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7. EEMeRIAfNSSFMES @)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) HITE=E(#E)
There was no arrangement under which a director I M E B R FE R EDSE B R E A
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during & HE o
the year.
The five highest paid individuals employed by the AV AEERESFMATRERZA
Group during the year were all directors, details of EE HEMBAAC 23 E -
whose remuneration are set out above.
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MKEH
Group
£H
2009 2008
—EBAF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BETF T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts AREFREHEENRT
wholly repayable within four years ERREXFS 40,855 42,884
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TAX 9.
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. The lower Hong Kong
profits tax rate is effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009, and so is applicable to the assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 March
2009. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the locations in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

31 March 2009 —EZENF=A=+—H
B
ERBANERERFRRE BRI Z & &t
FERB SR U R165% (= F N\ F:
17.5%) IRIEERH - ZBREN B BRBHR=E
H-ZEN\E —ZZAERBFELE
¥oAKEBRAR=-ZZEAF=ZRA=+—H
LTFE2FNEBRMMERBTEA - &
Hit b BHERFEHE  DREAEE
EBQEMEHBRBZRABEE RERE

B BHBTREGE -

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
B F T BT T
Group: 58 :

Hong Kong and the Mainland China taxes: & K& f B A BE#i 18 :
Current year provision REEEMRE 112,354 113,647
(Over)/under-provision in prior years AFE(GERE) TREHE (522) 130,142
Deferred tax (note 28) MEER B (K 5E28) 9,616 11,054
Tax charge for the year AEEHIE 121,448 254,843
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9.

TAX (continued)
Details of the underprovision of Hong Kong and Mainland
China taxes in prior years are set out below and in note

33(c), respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Guangzhou
Municipal Office of the State Administration of Taxation (the
“SAT Guangzhou Office”) of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC") conducted a review on the transfer pricing policy of
a subsidiary of the Group’s retail and distribution operation
in the Mainland China for the years 1997 to 2005. As a result
of the review, the Group was required to pay approximately
RMB61,000,000 of additional Foreign Enterprise Income Tax
for the years 1997 to 2005. As at 31 March 2009, the directors
of the subsidiary believe that appropriate tax provision has

been provided.
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TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in

which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax charge for the year is as follows:

31 March 2009 —%
BLIH ()
BERAARARENBARMERRZE
BiAT SR R HORE B Rt E 2 BR M
REEVIEBEHNT

FNFZA=1—H

2009 2008
ZEEBAEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group &8 BEFT EBEFT
Profit before tax B %4 Al i3 A 1,012,572 1,213,975
Tax at the domestic tax rates applicable to REBEMERE BN ER 2
profits in the countries concerned BMEGTEMBIE 50,561 70,675
Adjustments in respect of current tax of REFENEHRHIE
previous years HE (522) 130,142
Profits and losses attributable to AL B E N H
an associate | Sy (10,780) (12,235)
Income not subject to tax BE#B 2 WA (1,899) (1,753)
Expenses not deductible for tax FEERIBEHR 2 & A 40,029 44,142
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the A B E M A R SR
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC i Al B9 10% T8 40 % 18 1Y
subsidiaries (note 28) S8 (fa£28) 21,579 =
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on FEREBE 2 RAEREL
tax losses BEEE 28,378 34,879
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EHABEIHEBEEE (3,924) (9,711)
Others Hith (1,974) (1,296)
Tax charge for the year 2N E R E 121,448 254,843

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to

HK$11,833,000 (2008: HK$7,431,000) is included in “Share

of profit of an associate, net of tax” on the face of the

consolidated income statement.

FE 4G B & N B B 1B B 58 511,833,000 T ( =
TTN\F : B87431,0007T) B ARE R
BRZ[EGBEE QTGN BRHREEFHE]
I:Fl o
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=HA=+—H
10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 10. AARERMBEEREERT
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the BE-_ZZAFE=ZRA=+—BLEE 3
Company for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a profit ABRRBZMBRERAZARARERFTE
of HK$189,607,000 (2008: HK$574,182,000) which has been EEMERE BRI A B %189,607,000T (=&
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note F)\FE : #B¥574,182,0007T) (KFzE31(b)) °
31(b)).
11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2009 2008
—EBAE —EEN\EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBEFT BT T

Interim of HK18.0 cents (2008: HK18.0 cents) i Hi & % /& %5 18.01l
per share (ZZ2ZT)\F @ B¥18.01L) 238,940 239,132
Proposed final of HK22.0 cents Bk R 23 5 IR 7B M5 22.041L

(2008: HK25.0 cents) per share (ZZBZT)\F : BH25.01) 291,986 331,750

530,926 570,882

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the AEERRZARABREEFRATRRER
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming MERTHRRBEFASLES -

annual general meeting.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended

31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008 have been calculated as

follows:

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount for the year ended 31 March 2008 is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during that year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all share options into ordinary shares during

that year.

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

12. BEAXALQAFAEERZMEEZEESR

2H

—EEAEFE=A=+T—HBR-ZEENE=
B=+—-BLEEZEAR#EBEEZER
BERFTENT :

(@ EXBREF
EREREFNTDRA DL BESH
BERGAFESRNRNRFEFACET
LERRG 2 MEFIIHEE -

(b) BFRSREF
BE-_ZZT/\E=ZRB=+—-HLEE
WHERERENDRZFEZARRD
AT EES A E A% ERETE
H- ARSEERNERITEBERZMN
BFHRATDARFEEREREF
ZRE  RFEBERZFARUEMET
EREBERESEZBREMETY
MRE -
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31 March 2009 = ZEZE/F=HA=+—H
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are

based on the followings:

12. BEAXALQAFAEERZMEEZEESR
BF @)

EXARBERZBRBAAENT :

2009 2008
—E2EAF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity RAANBEEESEEREMNL
holders of the Company, used in the wmA o ARFTEELRESR
basic earnings per share calculation E R 860,357 926,351

Number of shares

BB E
2009 2008
—g2AE  —TENE

Shares
Weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year used in the basic

earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average

B 3
REFEELFERERNZ
FREBRTRMDME

F IR E

BETE — MEFT

1,327,029,255

1,326,957,809

number of ordinary shares: EERRE
Share options B IR R N/A" 38 7,338,817
N/A*TER"  1,334,296,626
* No diluted earnings per ordinary share is presented for the o ZEENFZA=—HIEFEILESR

year ended 31 March 2009 since the exercise prices of the share
options of the company outstanding during the year is higher
than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary
shares and, accordingly, they have no dilutive effect on the

basic earnings per ordinary share.

BERGREF  ABERARFART
EBRENITEERSHRARTEERY
FHHSE - U ERGREFEGE
MR -
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% BERRE

Group &5
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plantand and office vehicles
buildings improvements  machinery equipment and yacht Total
B ®E
HELH HE BE REAE RER
REF BF#E R & g &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFTT BEFT BETT BEFT BEFT EEFR
31 March 2009 “EEAFZA=+-H
At 31 March 2008 and RZEENE=ZA=+—H
1 April 2008: R=ZEENFMA-B:
Cost or valuation BAEEE 1,118,318 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,508,080
Accumulated depreciation 2iIE (288,884) (451,843)  (1,202,474)  (146,199) (51,222) (2,140,622)
Net carrying amount REFE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
At 1 April 2008, net of RZEENEFMA—-H
accumulated depreciation EHKRENTE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
Additions wE 854 89,919 42,606 19,889 10,139 163,407
Disposals HE = (4,224) (1,900) (1,626) (1,253) (9,003)
Depreciation provided during FRTE
the year A (46,118) (91,137)  (162,394)  (25851)  (10,378) (335,878)
Transfers from construction EEIREA
in progress (note 16) (Hiat16) 83,942 — 1,493 183 — 85,618
Foreign exchange adjustments ME F§%& 11,490 (1,402) 29,229 (2,323) 196 37,190
At 31 March 2009, R-ZBEA=A=+-H"
net of accumulated BB
depreciation E 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
At 31 March 2009: R-ZZEAFA=+-H:
Cost or valuation RASEE 1,218,961 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,683,995
Accumulated depreciation ZiHIE (339,359) (445,009)  (1,370,969)  (164,887) (54,979) (2,375,203)
Net carrying amount REFE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ FR AR EEDH
At cost R AR 1,199,285 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,664,319
At 31 March 1992 R-AN=F
valuation =B=t-HftE 19,676 — — — — 19,676
1,218,961 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,683,995
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31 March 2009 —ZEZENF=HA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. W% BERRE @)

Group £
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plantand  and office vehicles
buildings improvements  machinery equipment and yacht Total
Bk £E
HE i HE &= RBAZE AER
REF BFEE R &k g &t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFTT BEFT BEFT BEFT #EEFT EEFR
31 March 2008 —EENE=fA=+-H
At 31 March 2007 and RIEELE
1 April 2007: SEEr=HN
“EELFEMA-A:
Cost or valuation BAS EE 1,033,582 570,077 2,193,348 218,165 82,686 4,097,858
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (225,863) (393,687) (951,088) (141,470) (62,218) (1,774,326)
Net carrying amount REFE 807,719 176,390 1,242,260 76,695 20,468 2,323,532
At 1 April 2007, WZZEZtEMA—-H -
net of accumulated BHIRES
depreciation TE 807,719 176,390 1,242,260 76,695 20,468 2,323,532
Additions wNE — 62,643 87,598 17,760 18,355 186,356
Disposals HE == (10,972) (158) (9,867) (559) (21,556)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRHE
the year i (41,753) (96,737)  (149,821) (24,250)  (8,388)  (320,949)
Transfers from construction EEIREA
in progress (note 16) (Kt 16) 1,714 — 3,290 — = 5,004
Foreign exchange adjustments  /MEFZ 61,754 10,827 115,841 5,189 1,460 195,071
At 31 March 2008, RZIZEENE
net of accumulated =A=+—-8:
depreciation EMBREFTE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
At 31 March 2008: R-ZEENE
SEEEr=1[g3
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,118,318 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,508,080
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (288,884) (451,843)  (1,202,474) (146,199) (51,222) (2,140,622)
Net carrying amount REEE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
Analysis of cost or valuation: B AT HESH
At cost R 1,098,642 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,488,404
At 31 March 1992 R-Ah=%F
valuation =ZB=+t-RftE 19,676 — — — — 19,676
1,118,318 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,508,080
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13.

An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings at 31 March

2009 is as follows:

31 March 2009 —ZEZEHF=H=+—H
M - BERRME @)
R-ZZBEAF=A=+-B2HE+HR
BELHOT :

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
1992 1992
Professional Professional
valuation Cost Total valuation Cost Total
SUII=5E —hh=%
EXfE KA E Bt EEME A G
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT EETT EETR BEFTrT EETn EETn
Medium term leasehold land {7 A E i 2+ 5
and buildings situated in HELHR
Hong Kong Bx 19,676 101,443 121,119 19,676 101,443 121,119
Medium term leasehold land ~ fZ A& & ML 5h 2 5
and buildings situated outside HET# K
Hong Kong Bx — 1,097,842 1,097,842 — 997,199 997,199
19,676 1,199,285 1,218,961 19,676 1,098,642 1,118,318

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings has been carried out as the
Group has relied upon the exemption granted under
the transitional provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, plant and equipment”, from the requirement
to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant and
equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount
would have been approximately HK$7,191,000 (2008:

HK$7,681,000).

HOFHEELHREFER-NAAZEF
REIEXFEMETEMR - AEBE —
WAZFE WEKEHET HREFE
E-—SEHMGEE BREBSHEANE6
SRIYZE - BE R KRB | 5E80AR B E 1% %k
X BRAHEUERGEARNYE
BERERBEEFNREREEEMR - HZE
HETHREFRELRABRAITES
B HIRE S BEELN HE7,191,0007T (=
TE)\F : B%7,681,0007T) °
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=H=1+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWMHE
Group
£8
2009 2008
—EEAF —EEN\EF
HK$'000 HK$’000
B F T BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year REREE 123,208 119,682
Net gain/(loss) from fair value AREBEEARHNESE
adjustments (B8)F5E 2,873 (872)
Foreign exchange adjustments fE XS (5,882) 4,398
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HEKRHEE 120,199 123,208

The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$72,310,000 (2008: HK$67,282,000) and HK$47,889,000
(2008: HK$55,926,000) are situated in Hong Kong and
Taiwan, respectively. All investment properties are held
under medium term leases. The investment properties with
carrying value of HK$72,310,000 were revalued on 31 March
2009 by the directors with reference to the current prices
of similar properties in an active market at nearby locations
adjusted to reflect those differences; as well as recent prices
of similar properties or less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those prices. The
investment properties with carrying value of HK$47,889,000
were revalued on 31 March 2009 by Colliers Internationals,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis. The investment properties are
leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 34(a) to the

financial statements.

IRTE B A B %72310000 T (ZZEZF )\ F ¢
78 67,282,000 7T ) K 7% % 47,889,000 7T ( =
T Z \F : 55926,000) K1 & ¥ % 7 Bl (L
REBRGE REMEZRZHHALY
¥HE - IREMEAB72310000T 2 REY
EXDHESZSZEANER™ S AT
BUNENRER-_ZEZNF=RA=1+—
BEHEMURREEZER  BHBHEL
MENBRBRIBTFRNTE - F i
AEURREMBERXSZ BHEREBERN
HE - R-ZBEAF=ZA=+—0  KE
BERB1A7,889,000 T W RENEHERE
XERZBYRNEMS NERTHEMLE
MBEEEBR RAMTERREARE
HETEMR REVEDUELHAWET
B=E - FHAERENPBRMEE3M)



14.

15.

Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R R Mz

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

14.

The gross rental income earned from the investment

properties during the year amounted to HK$8,944,000 (2008:

HK$9,736,000).

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15.

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H
BEWE#E)
FRARRBREVECZHSWALEABE
8,944,000 jt ( = & &F )\ &£ : B #9,736,000

JT) °©

AN L EER

Group
&8
2009 2008
—EBETAE —EENE
HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year REDREE 25,471 25,419
Recognised during the year FARER (664) (651)
Exchange realignment fE AR 279 703
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HEKREE 25,086 25,471
Current portion included in prepayments, RBBHEERTEFKIE
deposits and other receivables AEREMERERERA (664) (661)
Non-current portion I % B &6 15 24,422 24,810

The above leasehold lands are all held under medium term

leases and are situated outside Hong Kong.

MEzHEL G URBPENEAERAZR
ERBUMET o
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. EEIRE
Group
|
2009 2008
—EEAEF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBEFr BEF T
At beginning of year REFD 148,701 38,513
Additions nE 52,722 105,626
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BAYE  KERRE
(note 13) (KraE13) (85,618) (5,004)
Foreign exchange adjustments INEE B 3,478 9,566
At 31 March INEFHETr=1E 119,283 148,701
17. TRADEMARKS 17. EE
Group
£8
2009 2008
—ETAEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T

Cost and carrying amount at 31 March R=EA=+—HEAREKREE 33,293 33,293




18.

Notes to the Financial Statements B} &3k R Mz

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=HA=1+—H

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REE AR 2R
Group
= |
2009 2008
—ETAEF —EEN\E
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets EBREEFE 111,271 104,764
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BENTRZERNT :
Percentage

Particulars of issued

Place of incorporation

of ownership
interest

attributable to

Name shares held and operations the Group Principal activity
BEEBTREN = 8 BY 3 )% AEEEGER

=g =% B R BHLE FEBEK

Megawell Industrial Ordinary shares Hong Kong/Mainland 50 Manufacture of

Limited
("Megawell”)
BEHBERAA

(rMe&EDh

of HK$1 each

BREBRB® 1T

China and Vietnam

BB/ PEAERBERE

garments

BREE
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. REtE QAT 2R (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRHIBEEEMBERRZ2UBEER
information of Megawell extracted from its financial ME
statements:
2009 2008
ZEZAEF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Assets BE 529,856 521,765
Liabilities afE 276,434 288,904
Revenues A 1,443,156 1,220,994
Profit after tax BRE 120 Al 116,241 118,047
19. DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 19. BENBELT
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free ENBMEARIRDERR BINERE

and repayable on agreed credit terms. RIGFTERAIERN ©



Notes to the Financial Statements B} &3k R Mz

20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=HA=1+—H

BFEIHRE

Group
&
2009 2008
—ETAEF —EEN\E
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Listed investments in elsewhere, REMBE EHHRE -
at amortised cost RE# A 37,043 =
Unlisted investments, at amortised cost FLETRE  RE#ERSK 54,000 —
91,043 —
Non-current portion IE 7 B I 15 (70,056) =
20,987 —

The investments have an aggregate nominal value of
HK$90,816,000, bear interest ranging from 1.20% to 5.45%
per annum and will mature within two years. The amortised
cost of the held-to-maturity investments have been
computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between
the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount.
At 31 March 2009, the fair values of the held-to-maturity
investments are not materially different from their carrying

amounts.

None of the held-to-maturity investments are either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-maturity
investments relate to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

ZIREME HEE R B 190,816,000 7T » F
BENF120%E545% 2 B > AW ER
HE - FEIHNREZCHERARMNE
ER VHRBERNSHFREEBENES
BMESREEAERAEEZHNREE
EEHBESHIEHEMNABTHERE - R
ZENF=ZA=Z+—B HFEINHPHRE
WAREHEARBNETESEREER -

ZEEZIHNREGEAHIRRE - B
EREZIENREFHNEREERIE
BN ERKREER -
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31 March 2009 —ZEZENF=HA=+—H

21.

22.

INVENTORIES

B RS R MR

2. &

Group
5
2009 2008
—EEAEF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBEFr BEF T
Raw materials BEHl 799,843 888,479
Work in progress EE M 95,371 94,359
Finished goods YA 760,881 604,237
1,656,095 1,587,075
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 EWERERREREE
Group
5
2009 2008
—EERF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BE T BT T
Trade receivables FE UK BR 7R 561,142 560,759
Bills receivable W EE 360,074 459,940
921,216 1,020,699
Impairment BAE (1,705) (2,814)
919,511 1,017,885




22.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Payment terms of the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “within 90 days from the date of
invoice”. A significant portion of the customers trade with
the Group under documentary credit terms. The Group
seeks to maintain strict credit control on its outstanding
receivables and has a policy to manage its credit risk. Since
the Group'’s trade and bills receivables relate to a large
number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date and net of

impairment, is as follows:

22,

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

YRR R EW RS (@)
AEEEFTERNAIEREE B HE
AEMNOXA] HPEEABHRUER
RETRS - AEEYBRERER— &
BEEFHENAEEREAR - ARAE
EERERREREECERSEF
HAEEERERNEEERAR - Bl
PR R U SR IE R FEME o

REHEH BRZAHRAKREERZE
WRBREROMWT :

Group
&

2009 2008
—BEAEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Within 90 days 0HR 899,897 1,005,532
Over 90 days 90H L 19,614 12,353

919,511 1,017,885
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31 March 2009 —ZEZEAF=H=1+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BEUWRREREWERRE &)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade and FREFRRERZERERENSSHOT :
bills receivables are as follows:
Group
£8
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
At beginning of year RER) 2,814 3,108
Write-back of impairment JE U BR TR R FE L ZE 4R (B B [
of trade and bills receivables (note 6) (Btate) (1,109) (294)
At 31 March IN=E == g 1,705 2,814

Included in the above provision for impairment of
trade and bills receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade and bills receivables of HK$1,705,000 (2008:
HK$2,814,000) with a carrying amount of HK$1,705,000
(2008: HK$4,890,000). The individually impaired trade and
bills receivables relate to customers that were in default
or delinquency in payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these

balances.

1E £ BB U BR X 2 BB W R BB B 1B R
BREYENEREEVERREREE
BHEBE1L705000 T (Z B2 \F | B
2,814,0007T) @ ZEBURRKREWZEN
BRE{E #1,705000 T (=B Z )\ F | BE
4,890,000 7T ) ° 7% £ 1@ Bl B R B FE W AR =K
BRABTARREINEF  BHZE
W R ERD R E o A KB IWEHZ
EHEFAEMNEFRIEMREAEAN
REE o
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

22. BEWRBRRREWKRE @)
BERBETAEZ ERERRERRE

not considered to be impaired is as follows: BREOMAT :
Group
£8
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBEFT EBEFT
Neither past due nor impaired WHBHATEFRE 792,925 861,545
Within 90 days past due BEHEI90H " 123,133 154,259
Over 90 days past due BHI90 B B £ 3,453 5
919,511 1,015,809

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have a good payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over these balances.

WHEH TEFREZEBRRESR K
HEF  MZERFLEFBITARER °

SRl BEEFHREIRRTIEES FHE
FEEERHERCTHE2EFEEH - 28
AER ARAESRAHAREFEERER
FERER ZEEHOATE2HKRE -
HUtEFELHRERE AREXLERZ
SRBEEERR  WEERAY -
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fTHEE€®MIA

Group

58
2009 2008
—EENEF —EEN\EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBHF T BT T

Forward currency contracts: EHIMESH :

Assets BE 41,920 62,335
Liabilities =kt 12,188 19,438

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the
fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to
HK$13,165,000 (2008: HK$17,504,000) were credited to the

income statement during the year.

AEECERITSETHEHHETERN
EHIESHUEEEEZRR - RER
ERRABEROFEHPIETEEEMND
REES 5B 13,165000T (=T )N\ F !

78 #517,504,0007T) ©
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2. BERBESEEY

Group Company
-3 N
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEhF —EENF ZEEBNF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 196,582 228,667 128 63
Time deposits EHFER 604,218 588,950 — —
800,800 817,617 128 63
Less: Time deposits with & : R H =1
original maturity AUt
of over three Bz
months when E
acquired TR — (496,086) — —
Cash and cash equivalents BE&RBEELZEY 800,800 321,531 128 63

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances

and the time deposits of the Group denominated

in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$120,907,000

(2008: HK$172,087,000) and HK$110,552,000 (2008:

HK$573,350,000), respectively. RMB is not freely convertible

into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s

Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration

of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB

for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

REEH  AEBUARBEEZRER
$RAT 45 8% ) E B 1 R 0 Bl % 78 % 120,907,000

(== Z N\ F : % #172,087,000 T ) &

& #110,552000 T( = Z 2 N\ F: B ¥
573,350,0007T) ° AR TEEEH B LR HE A
B ERBHPBAENEE - EERSY
EEERAE AEEEESBEREET
IEXBZBITEARBZIGAHMEY -
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24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period less than or equal to one year depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are placed with creditworthy

banks.

Included in the time deposits for the year ended 31 March
2008 were structured deposits of HK$496,086,000. The
interest rate on these deposits fluctuated based on changes
in currency exchange rate. The Group uses structured deposit

primarily to enhance the return on investment.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24,

25.

ReRBE&EEY @)
RITEHIRES RRITERFAZRRA L -
BRERERZERER—FRUT - 1
FAEBZNRESERME  BREE
HEMHERRERRAS - ROTLBRE
HERERNEERIFHET o

BERBE-_ZEENF=A=+—H1Lt
FEANEHEFRAELEBHEEREY
496,086,0007T * WEEFRZERREW R R
EMES SEERAGEBEERENRE
MIREEIR o

BHRERARENREE

Group
58
2009 2008
—BEAEF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Trade payables FE 1T BRFX 916,686 972,321
Bills payable BNEE 41,830 21,540

958,516 993,861




25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

26.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at balance
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25. ENRIRRENRE @)

REHEH BREAMZESRARENS

sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: EERBROMAOT :
Group
-
2009 2008
—STLE —BENE
HK$000 HK$’000
BEFT EBEFT
Within 90 days 0HA 883,876 991,992
Over 90 days 90H K 74,640 1,869
958,516 993,861

At the balance sheet date, the trade and bills payables are

non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day

terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

RESEH  BENERARECGERESFEHE

R—RBORKEIRE o

26. HittENRAKEFSEE

Group
-4

2009 2008
—EEhE —ZTENEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BEF T
Other payables H i FE (S BRFX 107,050 130,535
Accrued liabilities EitEaE 196,023 233,017
303,073 363,552

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

term of three months.

HtENRAABEFNE  BEFIRER=

EE
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MIERITER
2009 2008
“EZNE —EINE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$000
BERERNE ERERZ
Group 58 (%) HEA BEFRT (%) 3%A BEFT
Current E
Bank loans — RITER — within 1 year within 1 year
unsecured BHER 0.75-4.73 —£R 398,930 1.24-4.73 —£R 434,781
Non-current e
Bank loans — RITER—
unsecured EIK 0.75-4.73 2010-2012 506,914 2.00-4.73 2009-2012 812,769
905,844 1,247,550
2009 2008
“EZNE —EENE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BERERZ ERERZ
Company AH (%) FHA BEFRT (%) 3%A BEFT
Current TE
Bank loans — RITER — within 1 year within 1 year
unsecured EEF 0.97-0.99 —-ER 161,333 2.29 —ER 56,667
Non-current FRE
Bank loans — RITER—
unsecured g 0.97-0.99 2010-2011 238,000 2.29 2009-2011 283,333

399,333 340,000
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. WEBITER @)
(continued)
Group Company
& A F
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBERNE ZRENE ZBRNE ZRENE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BT BETT
Analysed into: 27
Bank loans repayable: RITEFERS :
Within one year or on demand R-ERFEEX 398,930 434,781 161,333 56,667
In the second year FIE 337,222 374,231 161,333 113,333
In the third to fifth years, E=2FEREF BEER
inclusive MmE 169,692 438,538 76,667 170,000
905,844 1,247,550 399,333 340,000

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings in Hong
Kong dollars and New Taiwanese dollars amounted to
HK$872,710,000 (2008: HK$1,156,664,000) and HK$33,134,000

(2008: HK$90,886,000), respectively.

The Group’s banking facilities were supported by corporate

guarantees from the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

R-ZBEZENE=A=+—-H AE@EZB
I T B W IR 1T B D Bl 33 78 872,710,000
T(=ZZF N\ F B %1,156,664,000 T )
R B M33134000 T( =T NF . B

90,886,0007T) °

AEBNRTEEDBHADAREFELH
BORMEHDEER -
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EIEBLIH
Withholding tax
on the distributable Depreciation

profits of the Group’s allowance in excess of Revaluation of Fair values of derivative

PRC subsidiaries related depreciation properties financial instruments Others Group
AEENTENEART  BUABFEER
#ARER N RAFE HiFERHE NEEMR fTESRIADME £t &9
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

ZRRAE CBRNE CRRNE CFINE ZRRAE ZFENE CEENE CEENE CRRAE CBRENE CR¥NE BRNE
HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BEFT ARTn  B¥Tn  BMFx  BRTn  ERTn BMTn  BEFn BRFn EETn EMTn BETR

Atbeginning of year A7) = = ) (21 1886 188 11,000 —  aM9 435 1664 5560
Deferred tax charged/ &zt A

(credited) to the b

income statement EESEE

during the year &/ (&)

(note 9) (H29) 21,579 - - - 867 —  (11,000) 11,000 (1,830) 54 9,616 11,054
At 31 March R=A=1+-8 21,579 — (721) (721) 2,753 1,886 - 11,000 2,619 4,449 26,230 16,614

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$607,704,000 (2008: HK$507,446,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries of which no assessable profits are

expected to generate in the foreseeable future.

AEBREBELEZHEBFER AR B
#607,704000 T( = X2 2 N F: B ¥
507,446,000 7T) » ZLEELEB BB BN D A
HERBEAZBERFERHFEIRZER
PR - MR KRBEREEEABER MW
BRAARARKREAELERBEF

EEBRBEEYERZSHRETER -
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. JEIEBLIE (#)
Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% RIEFEEMER L PEKRKENIIESR
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign XAROIFTREES RN RKRERE10%
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established BHHE - ZERA=ZFEENF—-HA—H
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 BER TEAR-ZEELE+=-A=+
January 2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 —BUBWNER - HREEZEARFZ R
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied EKENHEREHLFAEMEFERERFHE -
if there is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of BRARAEENTEZH10% EHEAEHR
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate BEZERPEAERAINMBATE-Z
is 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes ENF-A—HEWEBARMDIKHNEBES
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established FEHREHEE -
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the AAFAOERRRKEZRE  WEEHT
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. M BHBMPTBH2ER -
At 31 March 2009, the Company has no significant R-ZZBEFEAFE=ZA=+—8B ' X2FXRE
unrecognised deferred tax asset/liability (2008: Nil). BEARBIAELEHESEE BB (ZEZEN
FE|E)e
SHARE CAPITAL 29. BA
Shares R 2
2009 2008
—BEAEF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each 2,000,000,000 % 5 B% [EI &
in nominal value 7B #50.057T 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
1,327,211,104 (2008: 1,327,132,104) 1,327,211,104( Z 2 Z )\ F :
shares of HK$0.05 each in 1,327,132,104) REREE
nominal value 7 #50.05 7T 66,360 66,356
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29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. BA& (&)
Shares (continued) B’ (&)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital AABBARAER 2 SBHEHMMT
during the year is as follows:
Number of Issued share ~ Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTRHBE BRTRE RA R E R aE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2007 R-ZZE+EMA-A 1,326,288,104 66,314 344,158 410,472
Exercise of share options BREZT (a) 2,080,000 104 11,135 11,239
Transfer from share option reserve B RIERBEA — — 2,085 2,085
Repurchase of shares 1 8% B 47 (b) (1,236,000) (62) (6,780) (6,842)
At 31 March 2008 R=ZZENF=A
and =t-Hk
1 April 2008 —ZZ)\EMA-H 1,327,132,104 66,356 350,598 416,954
Exercise of share options BREZTE (©) 833,000 Ty) 4,591 4,633
Transfer from share option reserve  BRIERBEA — — 1,175 1,175
Repurchase of shares [E] 8 R 47 (d) (754,000) (38) (3,951) (3,989)
At 31 March RZZENE
2009 =B=t-H 1,327,211,104 66,360 352,413 418,773
Notes: Btst :
(a) The subscription rights attaching to 650,000 share options and (@) 650,000 15 J% 1,430,000 17 1 5 52 % 1 = 8 IR

(b)

1,430,000 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60 per share (note
30), respectively, resulting in the issue of 2,080,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$11,239,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company
repurchased 1,236,000 of its ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
in nominal value from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$6,842,000. These repurchased ordinary
shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company and the
share premium of HK$6,780,000 has been debited to the share
premium account of the Company. In addition, the Company
also transferred HK$62,000, which is equivalent to the nominal
value of these repurchased shares, from retained profits to
the capital redemption reserve as set out in note 31(b) to the

financial statements.

TE 7 B UL IR 8 #4.97 T R B #5607 2
REEETE(HEE30) - E U o 2,080,000
HR 5 R [E] {8 & #50.05 7T 2 & i BR LUK H1 BR
EHZ BB B B#11,239,0007T F K
BT o

b) R-ZZFBBENFZA=1—-HLEFEA X
2 B] LA B 4978 16,842,000 7T IR 117 45 [2] 58
AR E {88 #0.05 7T 2 & & K 1,236,000
Ko HE&E FARAFABBECHEZER &
#6,780,000.7T B 7¢ R 17 % 1B Ak F HI Br Ut
Sh K 2 A R B i F 8 1 B 162,000 T
ERAEOGE  HERALCBRG 2 H
B BEENBREHEHEEMZE310)
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30.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

(c) The subscription rights attaching to 50,000 share options
and 783,000 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60 per share (note 30),
respectively, resulting in the issue of 833,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a total cash consideration,

before expenses, of approximately HK$4,633,000.

(d) During the year, the Company repurchased 754,000 of its
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value from the
market at a total consideration of approximately HK$3,989,000
(including expenses of HK$14,000). These repurchased ordinary
shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company and the
share premium of HK$3,951,000 has been debited to the share
premium account of the Company. In addition, the Company
also transferred HK$38,000, which is equivalent to the nominal
value of these repurchased shares, from retained profits to
the capital redemption reserve as set out in note 31(b) to the

financial statements.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to

the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”), in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and other
employees of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 28
August 2002 and will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

29.

30.
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IR (4)

R (&)

(c) 5000013 K 783,000 17 [ff 5 2B 1 = BB SR &
2 Bl LA 5 ] B 154.97 7T R B #5.60 7T 2 53
1ERELTE (13E£30) - FH Ut - 833,000/ & KR
EEEM0S T 2 EBERUKHGERLZ
BB 2 1E#E#4,633000T T LUFETT °

(d) REFER - F2aa] KA E LK E #3989000
T (& 1% & /B 814,000 T ) R T 45 E] b
A & R H & & #0.05 7T Z & & IR 754,000
BReBA#E AARBUEEEIEEBER &
#£3,951,000 T E 7&K 17 5 18 AR 1 HIBR o st
Sh o A2 B B 1R B i F B3 A B 538,000 T
ZERABEO G HEREEBRGZEH
B HEERE R BEERNZ31(D) o

B
AABRzBREFERBEZ BT Z
BRESHAENTHNTBHRKRMEE30-

i IR R AT &
RARRA—EFELEHRUEIT7TEER
MBREFE(ZAE)) EZBENEM
HeERREHASEEHERNSRE
RERBREBMN - ZABANTSERSRE
BEALCAEZ(BEBIYFITES)R
FEEHEMES - ZFABERBR/B-F
EoENAZFTNREBRZTER -
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of share options permitted to be
granted under the Scheme was an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a

general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors but is not more than 10 years from the date

of grant.

30.

B E (|)
EHEAYCRSABT BRELAS
RAQEEMEEZ10%E BTRE - R
EA+-EAHERNREZTETNE S
BERSEATRTZROBE 85 F
BRATABE2AAABRTREI% -
EAE—SBEBBRREBRELE
BRERBRASHE -

BEE EEALERIERR AEGS
EABMEATREBERESEREFH
TEERERME I REM+ZEA
HERN FAERERTEIERRIB L
FUTESZ  IAREBEALBEBERALF
EEMRBE ZITRA01%REE (RERQ
ARMRZETEHMZERTE) BEBE
50000007 r X ERERRRARRARS
B -

WRAEZ BB T ALAREEA 2280
P BB REBET o BREZTER
MAEFERE  BRRTEBREAR
tzte
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30.
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme at the balance sheet date:

31 March 2009 —ZEZEHF=H=+—H
B ESE (|)
BREZTEEEHESER  HEREE
RUT28BEE : )VRATRONERE
RAERBEBR A2 W E (VAR AR
HREEEZ RN TERS B EBZ
ZEHRHE  RG)VRAOEEME o

BREYEBTHEEZARENEANR
RBRRENRENER

REER

ZAT BT RITEZERENT !

2009 2008
“BENF EERNE

Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price share options price share options

MmEFH MEF
TRER BREHE B BREHE
HKS per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
SREET i SREET i
At beginning of year RED 5.28 48,770 5.28 50,850
Exercised during the year ERETHE 5.56 (833) 5.40 (2,080)
At 31 March R=B=+-H 5.27 47,937 5.28 48,770

The weighted average closing price at the date of exercise

for share options exercised during the year was HK$6.59.

ROEEREEBNNMEFEIROUKTE
BHBH659 T o
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as follows:

BREE (#)

REEH  RITEBREZTEERRT

EHRMT :

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise price of
share options*  Exercise period 2009 2008
BRETEER* TEER —EBAEF —EENF
HKS$ per share ‘000 ‘000
TR EM T 3 &
4.97 11 September 2002 to 10 September 2012 24,950 25,000
ZEE-FANR+-—BE=ZZE—=-FhAT+H
5.60 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014 18,600 18,600
—EENF=A-t+ARABE-FE-—NFE=A=-1+HH
5.60 1 April 2006 to 25 March 2014 4,387 5,170
—EERFNA-—HE-Z-WNE=A=-1HH
47,937 48,770
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * FEIR ERY 1T 1B #5 R 2 2 =] B IR B8 R 3% AL

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company’s share capital.

During the year, 833,000 (2008: 2,080,000) share options

exercised resulted in the issue of 833,000 (2008: 2,080,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value of the

Company and new share capital of HK$42,000 (2008:

HK$104,000) and share premium of HK$4,591,000 (2008:

HK$11,135,000), as further detailed in note 29 to the

financial statements.

REERRAPEEMBLELIFT T

.

RER » 833,00017 (= ZZJ\E 2,080,000
) ERERTE SFAQXABITER
[ B 8 #0.05 7T 2 & i8I 833,000 R (= &
T )\E 1 2,080,0008% ) + K 48 h0 7 MR A 8 B
42,0007T (= Z U : #%104,000 7T ) A

BRAS BB 14,591,000 T (ZEZN\E 1 8
#511,135,000 7T ) =¥ 41 E R =N BB R

F£29 °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 March 2009, the Company had 47,937,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
47,937,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
nominal value of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$2,396,850 and share premium of HK$250,331,850

(before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, 50,000 share options
were forfeited upon resignation of an employee, resulting in
a reduction in the share option reserve which was transferred

to retained profits of HK$75,000.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 47,887,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 3.6% of the

Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company and the then nominal
value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the

Company’s shares in 1992.

30.

31.

31 March 2009 —ZEZAF=FA=+—H
BRESE @)
RZBZENFE=ZA=+—H TDQAEZ
=t &1 T 1% %5 47,937,000 17 B8 IR 7 A R 1T A o
BEALNAZRBEERERE  2ETEER
TeERESERENRTEREERS
0.057T 247,937,000 R A A T 2 H@ER » I
BE JMFE £ R 7R 7B 152,396,850 7T K IR 19 )i B

78 15 250,331,850 7T (21T & A AT) ©

EHE A% —{u{E S8R & R 3E50,00017
BE BEERAQATANEREXERE R

R 88 7% F 1 7 2> 78 #£ 75,000 T ©

REBBRR2ZER » AQAFEZTET
i 547,887,00017 B IR EARETFE - HER
ZHARDTEETRMDL3.6% °

&

(@ &E
AEERMFEASEFRBEREBZ
ZHR2INPBERRNGEEREE
RA o

HEAABE-NANAZFLHANE
B AEBECEHBBAARQNACH
1T IR 7R 2 TH L B T LA 48 Bl 6 2 R) A IR
BEHZERITRAREBEZEZRH -
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31.

EAFZA=+—A

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in
respect of business combinations which occurred prior
to 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated
retained profits. The amounts of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the
acquisitions of an associate prior to the adoption of
SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March

2009 and 31 March 2008.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice
Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, whose
principal operation is conducted in Macau, is required
to appropriate annually not less than 25% of its profit
after tax to a legal reserve, until the balance of the

reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund.

31.

e (&)

(@) &KBE(#)
HEAMBREMIE24 FEEE
SIREBMBREEREIRBEMS
R AR BT —FRHENZE
BEHELENBHBHBERESRE S
M - N=ZZ—FRASHER
FERISE305R A - AR —HE QA
EENEE  NESREESREET
FHSER-ZEZNE=ZA=1—

ER=ZZ2ZENEF=ZA=+—-HAEE

110,648,000 7T °

BIERMEES  AQR—2EHE
MEBAR  KEREORMBEEE
R#) BRAR - HEEEEREM
BT EEFIRETLIR25%HEKR
BEgRNELERE EERMHER
HEEZARELREH50% °
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RESERVES (continued)

(b)

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=HA=1+—H

31. &)

Company (b) AT
Share Share Capital
premium option redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
g
BRAEER BRERE BORE HUER REEN ag
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi EB¥Fr  BEFr  BETr BE¥Tn E¥Tn BEFx
At 1 April 2007 RZEELENE-A 344,158 9,841 1,587 48,708 781,894 1,186,188
Exercise of share options /7R B R 1E 29 13,220 (2,085) - - - 11,135
Repurchase of shares 5188 1R 3 29 (6,780) - 62 - (62) (6,780)
Profit for the year REEGF = = = - 574,182 574,182
2007/2008 interim “EEL/CBENEE
dividend FHRE = = - - (23913) (239132
2007/2008 proposed final BBt /ZT\EE
dividend RRAHRE - - - — @50 (331750
At 31 March 2008 and R=ZZENE=ZA=1-H
1 April 2008 E-ZZE\EMA-H 350,598 7,756 1,649 48,708 785132 1,193,843
Exercise of share options TEBRE 29 5,766 (1,175) — — — 4,591
Repurchase of shares B8 R 29 (3,951) — 38 - (38) (3,951)
Profit for the year REERT — — — — 189,607 189,607
2008/2009 ZZ2ER)\/ZEENER
interim dividend RERE - — — —  (238,940)  (238,940)
2008/2009 proposed final “ET)\/-EENEE
dividend BERERS = = = o (291,986)  (291,986)
At 31 March 2009 RZBEAF=A=+-H 352,413 6,581 1,687 48,708 443,775 853,164

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the

difference between the nominal value of the issued

share capital of the Company and the then combined

net assets of the subsidiaries acquired on the date of

acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which

occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares

in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(as amended), a distribution may be made out of the

contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

AEARABE-NAAZFLHANE
B ARBRCEHBBRARQACH#
17 IR 7R 2 TH B T LA 88 B 6 2 R A IR
BHZEHEEREZEZHE - RIEB
RE-AN-FRRE(BER) 7

RETERTIRBBEHRELR -
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32.

B RS R MR

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32. RBARIZRER
Company
A

2009 2008
—ETAEF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMBRMG AR 48,908 48,908
Due from subsidiaries FE U B B A B BR FX 1,362,379 1,645,893
Due to subsidiaries FEASHT B A T BR K — (95,823)
1,411,287 1,598,978
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free BB AR ZRARES  HEIEKE &R

and are not repayable within one year.

EREAN-FAMEE-
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R B AR Z R (&)
FRTrustland Inc.h > FREMIE A A HA LD

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

32.

All subsidiaries, other than Trustland Inc., are indirectly held

by the Company. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are

AIBERSE - TEWBLARFBENT ¢

as follows:
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR ERTEER AR A E) B4 R
=% BRERERMLE EEERAHEE ZEDE FTEXK
2009 2008
Trustland Inc.* British Virgin Islands/  US$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
REBEZRE BE  18000%TT REZER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Sale of finished knitted
Non-voting deferred fabric and dyed yarn
HK$3,125,000
KERBERDA =B B R AN B %5 1,000 7T HEHBAREY
ERERELERA
78 #53,125,000 7T
Texwinca Enterprises (China) British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* PRC
BxE(FE) BRERLE* REELHE 127 REZR
H
Dongguan Texwinca Textile ~ PRC/Mainland China HK$2,470,944,503 100 100 Production of finished
& Garment Limited* knitted fabric and
dyed yarn
REEKEHBRK T, A B K BE 785 2,470,944,503 7T LEREHBHIREY
BRAR*
Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of
management services
BXEEFERAF BB B2 RHEERS
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32.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Nominal value

of issued

ordinary/registered

32. KRBT 2SS (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, BRTEER NS R
=L BREREXMR EERRAEE ZEDE FEXK
2009 2008
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100 Property holding
Non-voting
deferred HK$2
KBEEXERATA =8 ZERABEI0T FEME
ERFEELERAS
B2t
Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100 Property holding
KETRRAE Eh 78 % 15,903,100 7T KEME
Baleno Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands ~ US$10,000 54 54 Investment holding
MEeREBEBERAT* REBEZHE 10,0003 7T REZR
Baleno Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 54 54 Retailing and
distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
PREBMRAF b 7 #10,000 7T ERRHNZEER D H
Guangzhou Friendship PRC/Mainland China HK$48,800,000 54 54 Retailing and
Baleno Company Limited* distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
J& M A RE BE fE B% AR £ HEl B K BE 78 148,800,000 7T BEREMNZEERDH
BRDF*
Shanghai Haiwen Baleno PRC/Mainland China US$210,000 51.4 51.4 Retailing and
Garment Company distribution of casual
Limited* apparel and accessory
L3878 SO fE B% AR £ HREl B K BE 210,000 % 7T BREMGNZZERDH

BRAF*
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NG X XE ))

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, ERTEER AR A E) AL R
=g BRRERME EEERAEE ZEDE FTEXK
2009 2008
Beijing Xingyu Baleno PRC/Mainland China US$500,000 54 54 Retailing and
Garment & Decoration distribution of casual
Company Limited* apparel and accessory
bR EF IS B AR 3 AR & hE B KR 500,000 3% 7T BRIz EERD#
BRAF>
Chongging Dasheng Baleno  PRC/Mainland China HK$3,880,000 54 54 Retailing and
Fashion Company Limited* distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
EEREVC AR ER HEl R B KR 78 1 3,880,000 7T BRERGYz2ZERDH
BRAF>
KEHMEKREBRLQF* PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB500,000 54 54  Retailing and
distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
L E AR AR % 500,0007 ERREGYW2TERDH
Silver Kingdom Limited* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54 Retailing and
Taiwan distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
RERBRAD A * REELHEE AHE 1%7T BRRHGNZERDH
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
Mainland China and provision of
franchise services
RUERAF REBEZHE 1%7T FABERRHESE
HE KR RE R
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32.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

32. KRBT 2SS (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, ERTEER AR A E) B4 R
=g BRRERMLE EEERAHEE ZEDE FTEXK
2009 2008
Highrich Corporation* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54 Provision of
Mainland China management services
and sub-licensing of
trademarks
RERARAF* REEZRE 1%7T REEERBER
SETPNES RIE R A AR 7
Winca Trading Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100 Provision of repair and
Mainland China maintenance services
for generators
KEBZERDF REBEZHE 1%7T RHBEH
SAETPNES HEERRERSE
Winca (Dongguan) Motor PRC/Mainland China  HK$28,460,000 100 100 Provision of repair and
Service Limited* maintenance services
for motors
KiE (RE) REHEBRE HHEl B KR 78 1 28,460,000 7T RA"EZ
BRDA> HERRERY
Successful Channel British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54 Property holding
Corporation* Mainland China
RERLHES 1% BEME
Bl K fE
Billion Global Limited* British Virgin Islands/  US$1 54 54 Retailing and
Taiwan distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
BEER D BRA A * RERELHES AY 1% BRERHGYz2EZERDH
BRIER R R AR PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB1,010,000 54 54  Retailing and

Tl B K BE

AR #:1,010,000 7T

distribution of casual
apparel and accessory

EREMM2TERDH
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NG X XE ))

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

32.

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, ERTEER AR A E) AL R
=g BRRERME EEERAEE ZEDE FTEXK
2009 2008
RENERBEERA A PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB5,880,000 54 54  Retailing and
distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
FEl B AR AR #5,880,000 7 ERRHBGY2TERDH
RO REHER AR PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB500,000 54 54  Retailing and
distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
hE S E KR A B #500,0007T ERRAGNZEERDH
Bk 75 2 fE B AR 8 B PR 2 B) * PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB600,000 54 54  Retailing and
distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
hE S E KR A E# 600,000 T ERRAGN 2 EERD#H
Baleno Kingdom (Singapore) Singapore $G$2,000,000 54 54 Retailing and
Private Limited distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
03K 3% ' 2,000,000 7T BRERHYz2EZERDH
Excel Billion Inc.* British Virgin US$1 54 54 Property holding
Islands/Taiwan
XEBEBRAERDF* RERZRBE B8 1xXn FREME
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

+—A

Place of
incorporation/

registration

32. KRBT 2SS (&)

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary/registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, ERTEER AR A E) B4 R
=g BRRERMLE EEERAHEE ZEDE FTEXK
2009 2008
REBMEHREERA T * PRC/Mainland China  HK$2,100,000 54 54  Retailing and
distribution of casual
apparel and accessory
AR 75#2,100,000 7T ERRBYW2TERDH
Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Procurement of raw
(Macao Commercial materials and sale of
Offshore) Limited* finished knitted fabric
and dyed yarn
KIERB CRPIBE =X RE) =M JELP9 % 100,000 7T R RM AR S E ST A
BRAF> ke
Baleno (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia MYR600,000 54 54 Retailing and
distribution of
casual apparel and
and accessory
B F5 #£600,000 ERRHN2EERDH
* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member @ 30 JE B K B AT AT E AT E B B b &K

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

net assets of the Group. To give details of all subsidiaries

Bt AT EBITER S F# o

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

EXREFHAQRAZ2ETEWBERT  £F
ARREUAEACERERBREIEZEN
ARAEEFEEZTENND -ESRA
HIFEMBRARAESHEARITR
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)
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33. EEFE

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not

(@) REER UTHEEBERREEIR

provided for in the financial statements were as FRME
follows:
Group Company
£ DA
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAFE ZEBENF —EEAFE ZEBENF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
EBYFT BYFT BYFT BYFT
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REZBHEAYEZRS
property rental deposits ZRITHEAR 2,567 3,280 = =
Guarantees of banking facilities A& A TR 1T
granted to an associate EEMEZER 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Guarantees of banking facilities BB A 7R 1T
granted to subsidiaries EEMEZER — — 4,322,470 4,594,050
As at 31 March 2009, the banking facilities granted R=-BEAF=ZA=+—H KB

to subsidiaries with guarantees given to the banks

by the Company were utilised to the extent of

approximately HK$506,511,000 (2008: HK$907,550,000)

and the banking facilities granted to an associate with

guarantees given to the banks by the Company was not

utilised (2008: utilised to the extent of approximately

HK$7,000,000).

RAECHAAAACHERERZERT
BHEXN % E®506511,00T (= F
J\ £ : 8 %907,550,000 7T ) ° i B &
RALEHAARRAREEERZE
THEE(ZZEZENF  EFRNEE

7,000,0007T) °
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

(0

A subsidiary of the Group in Taiwan is currently subject
to a claim from the National Tax Authority (the “NTA")
of Taiwan for the underpayment of business tax on
sales made through certain local stores in Taiwan
during the period from November 1998 to December
2002 together with penalties, of NTD50,219,000 in
aggregate (equivalent to HK$11,476,000). The case
was handled by the Taipei High Administrative Court,
which ordered a judgment in favour of the NTA in June
2009. The directors, based on the advice from the local
tax representative of the subsidiary, consider that the
subsidiary has a valid ground to appeal against the
latest decision of the court, and accordingly, the Group
has not made any provision for the tax claim as at 31

March 2009 (2008: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") initiated a
review on the tax affairs for the past years of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. In March 2007, protective
tax assessments totalling HK$322,038,000 for the
year of assessment 2000/2001 have been issued by
the IRD. In March 2008 and February 2009, protective
tax assessments totalling HK$224,000,000 and
HK$275,000,000 for the years of assessment 2001/2002
and 2002/2003, respectively, have been issued by the
IRD. Objections have been raised by the Group against
the protective tax assessments. The directors of the
subsidiaries believe that there are valid grounds to
object the tax claimed. Subsequent to the objections,
the IRD agreed to hold over the tax claimed completely
subject to the purchase of tax reserve certificates
in the sum of HK$40,000,000, HK$35,000,000 and
HK$25,000,000 for the years of assessment 2000/2001,
2001/2002 and 2002/2003, respectively. In view that
the tax review is still in progress, there are still certain
uncertainty about the outcome of the case. Up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, the
directors of the subsidiaries consider that adequate tax

provision has been made in the financial statements.

33. REEE#E)

(b)

(@

AEBRAEZ-—HEARZIAE
BE¥ R (TEHRBE 1) BHEEEBI
REMEFR-—AANET—AZE=
ZE_FT-AHBHEEZ O
B SR 0 4858 4 3 & %550,219,000
T (FHE R B #11,476,000 T ) © R =
TEEANEARNA BLEBETECER
(TR D) HREB BB R  H% A A
EBERRZER  EBMHEEZM
BAREBRDEBENARNARIESY
R BEREAEELRER=_ZZAN
F=ZA=+-BHULBBEEBHELR
B(ZEZBNEF &) -

R-ZELHEF=ZA=Z+—HLWE
B BARKE(HE] aRE@EB
PHEARRERATEERBRR
BITEZ R=-ZZTLtE=H BB
ER=ZZT —ZT-RREEH
o R B 14 B 75 ST 4 4L 78 %5322,038,000
T R-BENF=ZAR=-ZZNF
A BER=ZEE— =TTk
—ET- /TR =BHEEI BB
o AR B 1 B 75 R 45 2L 8 15 224,000,000
7T ]2 7 # 275,000,000 7T ° AN & E 6 15
ERMEERBNHBRTIRERY -
RASEERERYE®EZ  BHREAZEE
FiEm2B8R L EAR=-ZTT
S EE— . ZET— /2T

—EREC CEE=RBEES B
B f# B %5 © #8 $L 8 %40,000,000 7T
# 135,000,000 T K& # 25,000,000
T HREBEERNEETY H
b EEMHNERNELTEY - &
EAMBHEEMZD > EEHEAR
EERRUBRRPZBUEREC R
# o



34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3R T HisE

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

As lessor

The Group lets its investment properties (note 14)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to ten years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then

prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating

leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

(@)

34 REPELH

fERHAEA
FEERBEEHEZHFHAETR
B (MaE14) @ B EBMEE+
FA% - HOKR-—REEHPEH
NREZERAATRBEERTSE
REMREHESHE -

R-ZEZEAF=A=+—0 ' ~&H
REAEZTUTHHEEERESHR
REEERESHBIHABROT ¢

Group
55

2009 2008

—EEAF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within one year R—FR 20,388 11,913
In the second to fifth years, FE-EEERE

inclusive (BRERWE) 34,913 27,311

After five years REFEZ 7,034 —

62,335 39,224
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 34.

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain pieces of its land for factories,
retail shops, plant and machinery, and staff and
directors’ quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Such leases are negotiated for terms of not more than

50 years.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

RERER @)
(b) fERFERA

FEEREKEREZHEARAET
THAERE  BEBEE  BERE
WBIRESBBES - ZSHAE]
HBTEBA+F -

R-ZZEZENEFE=A=+—H ' &~5H
BEABE2TITHECEHESNR
RERESHSAEINHBROT :

Group
55

2009 2008

s = A%

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within one year R—FR 475,565 462,454
In the second to fifth years, E-EFERERF

inclusive (BREERWEF) 848,305 619,175

After five years RAF# 609,186 663,589

1,933,056 1,745,218
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessee (continued)
The operating lease rentals of certain retail shops are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent
rent based on the sales of the retail shops pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective
rental agreements. As the future sales of these retail
shops could not be estimated reliably, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above and only
the minimum lease commitment has been included in

the above table.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
commitments under operating lease arrangements

(2008: Nil).

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the

balance sheet date were as follows:

31 March 2009 —ZEZAF=HA=+—H
34 REBVEZH @

(b) ERFEBEA(H)
ETEH2KEHNBES I ZREENR
THRBEABBIAER 2 RR RS
ERHHEEMBEE A REEME
MZREEMEE - AREEERME
L SR AR 2 HER M ERRF
AMBESRAEE  MAFTFAKEES
ZSi

REER  AARYELEHERH

AE(ZEENE  8E) -

b3

35. ERMEE
REBMALEABUTEAM X HAIE

Group
£
2009 2008
—EEAF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
In respect of property, plant and equipment, Y% - BER®RE
contracted, but not provided for EATHNERRERE 1,167 35,928
In respect of property, plant and equipment, F¥¥% - BER®RE
authorised, but not contracted for ERERRETHN 330,331 330,331
In respect of an investment in a subsidiary FHRER—HEB QT 87,005 43,005
418,503 409,264

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no capital

commitments (2008: Nil).

REER  ARALEERAMAE (ZFF
NE ) e
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. EBEALIRS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following related (@ RERN AEBEZETUTEEAL
party transactions: X5
2009 2008
=T T VX BT LY
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
HtaE BT T BT T

Sales to Megawell HETREE (i) 468,386 463,330

Purchases from Megawell MR EEREE (ii) 339,838 240,684

Rental expenses paid to related MEEARXNEE

companies ZH (iii) 17,372 16,190

Notes: Btat -

(i) The sales to Megawell, an associate of the Group, were (i) EEEFE(FAEFNBE LF) ZHE
made according to the prices and conditions offered to DREAEEOETEEZFIEMRZE
major customers of the Group. W RAIRHET L -

(i)  The directors considered that the purchases from (i) EFRBOEFERBEZBHERK
Megawell were made according to the prices and o BEERREEFAEHEZER
conditions similar to those offered to other customers of RIGHIEE °
Megawell.

(iii)  The rental expenses were paid to related companies, (i) H2EBEHRXNFEERAIER
of which certain directors of the Company are also the BEEBRVEAXEZNE L EGHE
directors and beneficial shareholders, for the provision EEEREEFT ZERAGZE
of directors’ quarters and retail outlet for certain EREGBRRTBEI LA ZESE -
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The BEERARBAZHEDREHES
directors considered that the monthly rentals were FA#GTAZTEEERET - THZ
charged based on the prevailing market rates at the EEEEHTERACBERESEH
dates of the tenancy agreements. The rental expenses 2 WHIRHEHREMET
of the directors’ quarters were included in the directors’
remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the financial
statements.

In addition, the Company and the Group have provided o RRABARAEBAZEE QT

certain guarantees for banking facilities granted to EHE FRITEELRR  FHERSE

the associate, as detailed in note 33(a) to the financial

statements.

R B 7% R R B FE33(a) ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(9]

As at 31 March 2009, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided
advances of HK$12,984,000 (2008: HK$1,823,000)
to Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at HIBOR plus 2% (2008:

HIBOR plus 2%) per annum.

In addition, as at 31 March 2009, Nice Dyeing Factory
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has provided advances of
HK$443,847,000 (2008: HK$411,831,000) to Baleno
Holdings Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, at 83% of HIBOR plus 2% (2008: 83% of

HIBOR plus 2%) per annum.

The principal purpose of these advances is to finance
the operations of Baleno Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. The advances are unsecured and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

A minority shareholder of the Group’s 54%-owned
subsidiary had provided an unconditional guarantee
to indemnify the Group from any loss arising from the
recoverability of prepayments made to a supplier of
the Group of HK$25,029,000 (2008: HK$26,521,000) as
included in the balance of the prepayments, deposits
and other receivables of the Group as at the balance

sheet date.

31 March 2009 ==

eAFZA=+—A

36. BEALRS (#)

(b)

(9]

R-ZZBBAF=ZA=Z+—H ' &&
Er2EREWBATKERBE
RARMASEE 2L ERETHE
ARAUCHEERADRUZERS
ZN\EF B
FRANERHEBRITE
EFEM2% (=ZFZN  FERERTE
EFEMN2%)

78 512,984,000 7T (=

1,823,000 7T ) -

i R=FFNEF=A=+—8
AABEEEANE QB KERK

(RPIBE % RIRIE) B R A F BA
ARKREREWEATREHEE
BRAFRHEHE
—EENE:

X 7% 5 443,847,000 7T
7% 411,831,000 7T )
FRANERBBRITEEFEM2%H
ZEN\F BBRTBER
B.n2%#983%) °

83% (=

ZERTEAFURERERGRA
REMBLARzEEES - LHE
R IR R EHEERAD -

AEBEBEMA%EEHBARZHES
—LHRRRAEEANS —HETE
SNF:
526,521,000 7T ) 12 3t S {6k 1 2 4R LAl
EEFAKEERKLEZEL REE
B> ZHREEBREAENRE -FTE&R
Hiy W BRFR A BR A o

X 78 125,029,000 7T (=
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the

BEALXS (&)
d) AEEZBEBASHMH

Group:

2009 2008
—EBAE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Short term employee benefits EHESRF 94,010 109,662
Post-employment benefits BB 2B A 60 60

Total compensation paid to key FTEEE ASHH
management personnel Fap-c) 94,070 109,722

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 7 to the financial statements.

Except those detailed under “Details of non-exempt
continuing connected transactions” of the Report of the
Directors, the related party transactions in respect of items
(a)(iii) above constitute continuing connected transactions
which are exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders approval requirement as defined

in Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

EEMESHBENYBIRRMET -

BREFIREERREAN TRH RN HE
BREHBEIN LREEALRSREE
(ii) T8 A & £ ™ 38 B 55 14A 650 15 1R TE B 5
SRBIRRH BN EBMERS -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

31 March 2009 —ZEZEhF=H=1+—H

37. REFSINEMITA

REEH SESRTITARBENT

Group &£E5
Financial assets SREE
Financial

assets at fair

value through

Held to  profit or loss
maturity — held for Loans and
2009 investments trading receivables Total
UAREE
FFTEEHEHZE
sSFAEBEEN
BZEEH SHEE ERR
—EENF WR&E —RFEE EWRE &ast
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Trade and bills receivables FEWERF R EWZE — — 919,511 919,511
Held-to-maturity investments 3% & F| 818 E 91,043 — — 91,043
Financial assets included BIEREMARE -
in prepayments, deposits & & H b fE Uk
and other receivables BRAAZEHERE — — 303,679 303,679
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE — 41,920 — 41,920
Cash and cash equivalents BHERBESEEY — — 800,800 800,800
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REHESWNERMIA &)
(continued)
Group &£ EF
Financial liabilities - h=Ri
Financial
liabilities

at fair value

through profit

or loss Financial
— held for liabilities at
2009 trading amortised cost Total
LR REE
STEEHESE
FTABREN
tRaE REBHRA
g 2 —BEEE ARWNEREE &&t
HK$7000 HKS$000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT
Due to an associate FESH#E DT — 11,231 11,231
Trade and bills payables EAERRREMSRE — 958,516 958,516
Financial liabilities included BIERHEMENSRR
in other payables and REGTEER
accrued liabilities Z2emasE = 107,050 107,050
Derivative financial liabilities TETHMEs 12,188 — 12,188

Interest-bearing bank borrowings i £ 48 1T & X — 905,844 905,844
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Group

Financial assets

37. REHESWERMIA (&)

£HE

TREE

Financial assets
at fair value
through

profit or loss

— held for Loans and
2008 trading receivables Total
UAnER
STEEHSZE
FFABEM
ZEENF —BHEEE EBERREWRFE At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade and bills receivables FEWERF R E R ZE — 1,017,885 1,017,885
Financial assets included in BEREMNTIE &
prepayments, deposits REMEWIRRA
and other ZEwl
receivables 5E — 252,690 252,690
Derivative financial assets TEESMEE 62,335 — 62,335
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEESEEY — 817,617 817,617
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

37. REHESWERMIA (&)

Group £E

Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities

at fair value

through profit

or loss Financial
— held for liabilities at
2008 trading  amortised cost Total
UAnERE
TEBEHEZE
FTABEH
Ea= =R RE # A
—EENF —BEEE AERNERAE ast
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Due to an associate EABE DT — 20,141 20,141
Trade and bills payables EAERRREMSRE — 993,861 993,861
Financial liabilities included in IR H b FE (S BR X
other payables and REGTEER
accrued liabilities A =R = 130,535 130,535
Derivative financial liabilities mTELSRMERE 19,438 — 19,438
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ff .48 4T & X — 1,247,550 1,247,550
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

37.

REEEINESRMIE (&)

Company AT
Financial assets SREE
2009 2008
ZERERAF —EENF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
ERRERFKE BXRREWRE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Due from subsidiaries FE UL B A 7 BR X 1,362,379 1,645,893
Dividends receivables FE W AR 2. 200,000 335,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEEY 128 63
Financial liabilities - h=Ri
2009 2008
ZEENF —EENF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
RE#HRE RE B A
ARNEREE ARNERMER
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M 2ERITE K 399,333 340,000
Due to subsidiaries FE AT B B A B BR X — 95,823
Financial liabilities included BERETEER
in accrued liabilities ZE®maRs 303 651
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. BiXEKREEEHERKE

POLICIES
The Group's principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafts, and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage currency risks arising from the Group’s operations

and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to

derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt

obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest

rate fluctuations.

AEEMZEIEEMIBEBTETARM E
BROABEREX REREHMER - =%
ZERMIACZIRENRERALAEESESE
BEL AEBEREMFAENYKEER
B BEEURIRERREREMNK
RRENRES  NREBHEE -

AEENFSRTEIARS  TEEHEERE
HOAESN  EEEELAEEEERME
FEEZFERREHRAR -

AEEERITAMEEZETERBRABRE
Rk - SMERER - FERERRRE R
EZEeEHYRAEBERERL 2B
ZEBRRPMMT - AEEEETETA
ZERTHEER Y RRME24 -

R 2= @R
FEBES TSN RSHABTIREALE
B2FERMEBEEIAMRE -

FEBNHRERAASENELSRFEME
BHAEEEFEHAR - BUARARE
EEZAS  AEESREANRIEHRSN

LURE B8 8 R =R B 2 L o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38, BiEMEERERKE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax

REEE (&)

TRERTEEEREHMESENERT
REBWRBAEANNANEFR AT
B HEeERTRNA RS (FHZE

(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the BEHPEE) RN o

Group’s and the Company'’s equity.

Group Company
REE RAF
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)
(decrease) in profit in profit
in interest rate before tax before tax
% and equity and equity
MEEM BRBAGARE BRBASRRE
OR4) =miEgm,/ CRd) = CRd)
% HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
2009 —BRAE
Hong Kong dollar s 1 (11,777) (3,931)
Hong Kong dollar ke (1) 11,777 3,931
2008 —zEnE
Hong Kong dollar pi g 1 (10,819) (1,133)
Hong Kong dollar s (1) 10,819 1,133
Foreign currency risk ShES L B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currency.
Approximately 28% (2008: 29%) of the Group's sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency

of the operating units making the sale, whilst almost 55%

AEEFERZERAR  ZABRAR
EENVUZENNREEE U2 EEET
HERKE - AEBHN28% (=FTEN\F !
29%) ZHETIUREENRERE U Z
EMHE BRAS5%(ZZZN\F 1 59%)
ZRATDAREBENINGEEE U 2B

(2008: 59%) of costs are denominated in currencies other sHE

than the units’ functional currency.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair

value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s

38.

BREREEEEREEK (&)

SRR (A7)

TREMRTREEREEEMAEHMLES
MIERT  AEEHBRBAENR A EE
MESHSERUTENARBERZE (H
RERMEENEEIAENZE) HH

Bt o

equity.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
exchange rate profit before
%  tax and equity
EX BRBAENRE
®hCRA) #HmEMORD)
% HK$°000
BT T
2009 —BBAE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens i A HE AR
against RMB B{E 1 1,545
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens i B AR
against RMB HE (1) (1,545)
2008 —TETN\F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens fa M 5 AREE
against RMB BE 1 5,598
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens fii B 5 AR
against RMB HE (1 (5,598)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-
established customers will be considered for open account
credit terms and the approval of the terms is subject to
stringent credit check procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial

assets are all well-recognised financial institutions.

The held-to-maturity investments are interest-bearing notes.
At 31 March 2009, all issuers of held-to-maturity investments
are well established corporations. The Group’s exposure to

impairment is not significant.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for

collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are

disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

38.
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BREREEEEREEK (&)

FERR
FEBEREFEACERFZE=ERS -
FEBCHRERRZBRERFERZEF
MYRGEFR, RETEREZEEER
BF e b REBSHENESEWNE
BER o MAKENEERZIZRER -

FEBHMERMEE (BERERASEE
Y- TEERITA) 2FERBEERSY
FEOMELE HEABEZERZEIA
ZEEREE BHRUHEBCEREERSZHF

R-ZZBEZFEAE=ZA=+—0 " TIEFZEE
HOBRERMERS HRITEHYABRE
R - AEEEHRERRTS °

HRAEBEEERRIAGEERFZE=
X5 BUBMBREHIKAR o

HhEEASEEEHERERRERE
BELENGEERRZELHEC AR
WMRMEF22
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between

continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank

overdrafts, and bank loans. As at 31 March 2009, 56% (2008:

66%) and 44% (2008: 34%) of the Group's total borrowings

will mature over one year, and in less than one year,

respectively.

38. BiIKEREEEEREEK &)

T B 1t /| B
AEEBEBERAARTEIRBITERN
FERESCHEEMERBEFENE TS -
RZBEAFZA=Z+—H  XEHE56%
(ZZZNEF 1 66%) RUN(ZFFNEF
M%) LMBEESR  FRBR-—FER
—FREH -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities REBNSEEAWELRERS  BRABXIK
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual HWB B RALENT :
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group &£ EF
3to
Less than less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=Z
+=@A
RER Z=ZBEAUR PR —ZEhHE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
2009 —EENF
Due to an associate FEfBE QT — 11,231 — — 11,231
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  [f 2 $R1T & & — 108,301 290,629 506,914 905,844
Trade and bills payables BAERAEESRE — 939,596 18,920 — 958,516
Other payables H & {3 BR X 303 106,747 — — 107,050
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemas — 2,546 9,642 — 12,188
303 1,168,421 319,191 506,914 1,994,829
2008 —EENEF
Due to an associate FEfSEE & D A — 20,141 — — 20,141
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  Ft 81T &R — — 434,781 812,769 1,247,550
Trade and bills payables ERERERREMSRE — 991,992 1,869 — 993,861
Other payables HAh IR 651 129,884 — — 130,535
Derivative financial liabilities TTEELmER — 7,008 12,430 — 19,438
651 1,149,025 449,080 812,769 2,411,525
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. B EKMEEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REMEREE (F)
Company ATl
3 to
Less than less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=z
+={@A
RER Z=Z@ANRRK B —ERE &t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000

BT BT BT BETT BETT

2009 —EENF
Financial liabilities included BIEAETEERAZ
in accrued liabilities N =Ri 303 = = = 303
Interest-bearing bank borrowings [ £ R 1T &% — — 161,333 238,000 399,333
303 — 161,333 238,000 399,636
2008 ZEEN\FE
Financial liabilities included BERETEERZ
in accrued liabilities cREE 651 — — — 651
Due to subsidiaries KB R 95,823 — — — 95,823
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it 8817 &% — — 56,667 283,333 340,000
96,474 — 56,667 283,333 436,474
Capital management ERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will FEBEAEERARBAEEREFE
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the WkEaeh ARERERNEREEL
return to the equity holders through the optimisation of the Z UERREBEHEAER
gearing ratio.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBEEEXRAEBURREBERERFTRLN
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. EEFELRB AEETUBBABER
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may RIKENRE  ORREBEBEEARRZITH
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital BRURBSABELRERE - RBE-ZZ
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made NE=ZA=Z+—BER=ZFENF=ZA=+
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital —ALEER EXEENERZR BEXR

during the years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008. BRIl EEE o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38,

39.

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is
total interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents,
divided by the total shareholders’ equity. The Group’s policy

is to maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate level.

The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as

BREREEEEREEK (&)

BEAEE(F)
AEBERERAERBHREREL X
BELZENRRERFSEENERNE
MEBEBBKRUARRESTHE - AKEH
HREERFESEBEEREEKF -

REEENEFAEF/LRNT :

follows:
Group &£ H
2009 2008
—EENE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Total interest-bearing debts B AR 905,844 1,247,550
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ik BERREZEY (800,800) (817,617)
105,044 429,933
Total shareholders’ equity A R A 4,274,788 3,916,285
Gearing ratio EXBEL=R 0.02 0.11
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. MBHR2KE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 6 July 2009.

AUBBRENR-ZZNFLASBEHE
EERERRETE -
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